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Financial Summary

MR

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS T AR 0

For the year ended 31 December ~ HZE 12 A31BIEFE 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Operating Results KeE

Gross profit margin (%) EFIE (%) 21.7 328 404 405 424
Operating profit margin (%) BEENE (%) 23 13.2 19.8 287 2.9
Net profit margin (%) (Note 1) SEHIZ (%) (A1) 0.7 10.7 15.1 232 03
Return on equity (%) BREE (%) 03 6.7 22.1 385 06
Financial Position BRI

Total assets (HK$'000) BEE (TA7) 352,779 329,045 197,409 165,963 160,594
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBReZEY (FAT)

(HK$'000) 79,383 76,928 15,584 23,493 19,349
Total bank loans (HK$'000) PITEREE (TEn) - - 28,205 23,850 26,477
Total equity attributable to KATERRR

equity shareholders R e (i)

of the Company (HK$'000) 303,786 306,869 135,839 97,055 50,581
Financial Ratios g
Current ratio (times) BN (15) 5.2 8.4 1.45 111 0.62
Quick ratio (times) RELLA () 4.8 7.4 1.14 0.87 047
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 2) BELE (%) (fiF2) - - 20.8 23.7 51.9
Turnover Ratios AL =
Inventory turnover (days) FERAE (B) 70 63 54 61 80
Debtors turnover (days) JEKERFEE (R) 84 77 62 49 55
Creditors turnover (days) FEfTEEAE (B) 69 38 36 45 35
Operating cycle (days) fmeE (/) 85 102 80 65 100
Notes: ez -

(1) Net profit represents profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the

Company.

(2) Gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity as shown

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(1) FFEER AE R T

2)  RELFRERBER BB H ik (W
A BARIIREITT) °
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The following is a summary of the consolidated income statement

AT RAEE 276 WEmR LFE IR

and consolidated statement of financial position of the Group: r2WE
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT B i R
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
For the year ended 31 December ~ HZ12 431 ALLEE THER THT TR TER THT
Turnover EXH 157,373 190,433 199,224 160,714 117,399
Cost of sales SHERAR (113,755) (127,888) (118,765) (95,582) (67,624)
Gross Profit Eil 43,618 62,545 80,459 65,132 49,775
Other revenue Hvas 3,629 7,204 1,093 305 176
Net realised and unrealised REMBABHFEECERR
gain/(loss) on investments in FERMKE/(BR)F8
listed equity securities - - - 6,841 (22,370)
Other net (loss)fincome it (BR)/ BHFE (1,600) (373) 290 (370) (490)
Distribution costs DA (13,630) (12,788) (9,570) (7,446) (7,417)
Administrative expenses THRE (28,330) (31,389) (32,885) (18,323) (16,230)
Profit from operations =y 3,687 25,199 39,387 46,139 3,444
Finance costs AR A - (261) (1,614) (1,885) (913)
Profit before taxation BRBLATEA 3,687 24,938 37,773 44,254 2,531
Income tax iR (2,859) (4,516) (7,000) (3,979) (4,601)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRER/ (58 828 20,422 30,773 40,275 (2,070)
Attributable to: AT S IBME
Equity shareholders KATERRR
of the Company 1,055 20,422 30,071 37,350 312
Non-controlling interests JE R (227) - 702 2,925 (2,382)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF i M BIR LR
FINANCIAL POSITION
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December M2 A31B1E TEx FTERr FEn TERT iR
Non-current assets FRBERE 165,089 142,483 107,980 94,097 93,867
Fixed assets EEEE
— Property, plant and equipment  —#1% « BE MR 122,651 107,540 98,139 87,199 83,076
- Lease prepayment —HEBEN 33,543 4,395 4,285 4,232 4,316
Intangible assets EVEE 6,668 7,463 4,511 - -
Long-term receivables REEREE - - - 847 1,055
Prepayment for fixed and EIE RER EER
intangible assets BRHIE 212 21,551 489 875 474
Deferred tax assets BILHIBAE 2,015 1,534 556 944 1,544
Other financial assets Hit e MEE - - - - 3,402
Current assets RBEE 187,690 186,562 89,429 71,866 66,727
Inventories RE 16,464 22,995 19,281 15,432 16,283
Trade and other receivables 85 REMEKE 48,169 40,793 53,349 29,688 22,099
Investments in listed equity REMBABHEE
securities - - - - 8,996
Amount due from related parties  fEUR B8 7 508 - - - 1,034 -
Current tax recoverable I EE 1,354 2,297 1,215 2,219 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 79,383 76,928 15,584 23,493 19,349
Deposits with banks RITEHER 42,320 43,549 - - -
Total assets EELE 352,779 329,045 197,409 165,963 160,594




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HAWMERIE

FINANCIAL POSITION
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December K12 A3181E TEn FTEr FTEn TER iR
Current liabilities REEE 35,988 22,176 61,570 64,863 107,501
Trade and other payables B R EMERFE 33,494 20,172 30,445 24,964 27,101
Amount due to related parties  FERBERE T A - - - 11,051 47,367
Bank loans BITER - - 28,205 23,850 26,477
Obligation under finance lease ~ BEMREE(T - - - - 1,354
Current tax payable AEREATIE 2,49 2,004 2,920 4,998 5,202
Net current assets/(liabilities) FRBEE /(8f8) %4 151,702 164,386 27,859 7,003 (40,773)
Total assets less current ERBERRDER

liabilities 316,791 306,869 135,839 101,100 53,093
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF M BRIV R
FINANCIAL POSITION
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December R12A3181E TER TET FAERT TERT FAET
Non-current liabilities E N 111 - - 631 2,040
Obligation under finance lease ~ BEMEET - - - - 1,566
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 1111 - - 631 474
Net assets EEFE 315,680 306,369 135,839 100,469 51,053
Capital and reserves EXR G 303,786 306,869 135,839 97,055 50,581
Share capital PR 4,150 4,150 - 1,000 1,000
Reserves [ 299,636 302,719 135,839 96,055 49,581

Total equity attributable to ANAEERRIE

equity shareholders of hERAE

the Company 303,786 306,869 135,839 97,055 50,581
Non-controlling interests FEERR S 11,894 - - 3414 472
Total equity R 315,680 306,369 135,839 100,469 51,053
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Chairman’s Statement

EREWE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual
report of KEE Holdings Company Limited for the year ended 31
December 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year 2012, the Group recorded a decrease in the sales of
finished zipper products. The turnover of the Group decreased by
approximately 17.4% from approximately HK$190.43 million to
HK$157.37 million on a year-on-year basis, primarily due to (i) the
global financial crisis and the euro debt crisis which continued for
several years; (i) the slow-down of China’s economy in 2012; and
(iii) a destocking policy adopted by the apparel industry in China.
Notwithstanding the above, we recorded satisfactory results in
respect of sales channels expansion and market development
etc. Compared to 2011, turnover from overseas markets of
approximately HK$30.65 million, representing 19.5% of the
Group's turnover, increased by approximately HK$11.85 million. In

AANZERREFD  MAREHAIERER
NEEE2012F12 A31 BIEFEHFR -

S5 ol

20124 « NEB 2 FFRHEE RIS SIS
TEE o REBREEEE AL 1.9043 BE LR
LE15737EETT  BERDL17.4% - £
ZAEA () HELAFN 2R REEMBONE
HEER B (11)2012 FRBILEIRR TG
e (iii) PR AR AT IR M AR FLRE - &
Bl RMEREHEERENTISMAES
FEES T A E M o L2011 6 - F5h
TSR EREL0.3065 BB T - (hAEE%E
X% 219.5% WRTHO0.1185EBT - I
20124 - ZMIBE T HEEHMLREEGINE
mAEMTIEAEAS - MR THRGIHINT
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2012, we recruited competent and experienced overseas product
development and market development personnel to strengthen
our capability in developing the overseas market and developing,
designing and manufacturing products for the high-end brand
“X3". Efforts in developing the U.S. market also gradually began to
bear fruit. In 2012, we successfully commenced cooperation with
25 new brand owners, nine being domestic brands and 16 being
international brands. As at the end of 2012, we cooperated with
92 brand owners, out of which 38 are domestic brands and 54 are

international brands.

The gross profit margin for the year 2012 decreased to 27.7%
from 32.8% for the year 2011, mainly attributable to increase
in the fixed cost per unit which resulted from a decrease in
sales orders. For the same reasons, the profit attributable to
Shareholders decreased by approximately 94.8% from HK$20.42
million in 2011 to HK$1.06 million in 2012.

Nevertheless, it is worthy of recognition that we actively
strengthened the management of production operations and
made considerable improvements in aspects such as personnel
management, wastage reduction, production automation and
optimization of production processes, which helped to reduce
cost of production to a certain extent. We still hold a sound capital
and asset structure, which is a solid foundation for sustained and
rapid business development, and we maintained a stable dividend
policy.

BN - BT T B MR X3 ERHFH
% RETREER S c HEEMSNHAE
ZASFREVEA ° 20124F - TN EL25
B mE B alE  2ELEBARRE -
16 EEFR @& o B IERI2012F F48 - F 16
2 EREEEIE - AR BE38EBIRmAE -
54 R EIFR g o

2012FKIEFIEH 2011 FH32.8% FNEE
27.7% FERARHESEE THREHE
Az ETER A IS - BRERMRE - &
REMRAE 2011 F82,04828BT NERE
2012106 B/ETT © TEAIEEA994.8% ©

BEWL - BES5ENE - BAEEMRT
FEESENTENERE  UHEASER R
LERE - EEADL  BLAEERREIE
hE-ERENNE  EEERELRE
THEERSE - HFDAERINESNEERR
B REBNSENMREERREHRTEEN
EiE - WRFRBEABRAER -



OUTLOOK

In 2013, we anticipate the demand for zippers will be affected due
to the slowdown of the economy in China and the de-stocking
policy adopted by the apparel industry.

However, we will proactively cope with the difficulties by
implementing the following measures:

We will continue to place efforts in sales channels expansion,
market development and product structuring, play an active role to
strengthen overseas market development personnel and overseas
agents in market development. We will also reorganise and
optimise the whole sales and marketing system to better develop
the finished zippers and flat knit ribs market. At the same time, we
will continue to develop new products to satisfy the needs of our
customers in order to further increase our market share.

We intend to become a comprehensive supplier of finished
zippers and other garment accessories by offering to customers
one-stop garment accessory services so as to diversify product
structure and expand our share in the apparel material market. It
is our plan to build KEE Jingmen, our subsidiary, into a garment
accessories industrial park to draw in other strategic partners in
the industry.

The subsidiary KEE Jingmen is scheduled to commence operation
by the end of 2013, which will increase our capability in zippers,
flat knit ribs and other garment accessories. We intend to
reallocate and integrate production resources to reduce costs
such as salaries and energy consumption. We will also rationalise
manufacturing location according to distribution of customers to
reduce logistics costs and meet customers’ expectations of quick
response.

J 8l

B0 20134 - RPVIEHIF EAE AR AU -
TR =B R SR T E Y 0N
BE -

B2 BASRBIA T EGEREY

BPSEEENRHERENMTIGHERERE
mAEBETEMARA - BEBEFINTS
FEABMBINEERIENTIZHEER -
HAPIh A SR E S S R T T E B
PASE 45 s B S IR AU R AR B AL 45  [A]
B BAOSHERERREP B ROHE
i AE—FIRETWIHSNE o

HFET B Al E N B Rt REE R GRA
HER  ARFPRHRESH —WHXRYE
REEREBZTI  BERESHHNTES
HEE - TRAAMSHIIET BN ARES
IR TR HEaRESHEAEEEEE
HIA o

FRAFSHPIE BN 2013 FFRRE -
BRGNS - EHESARE MR
KHBTHMESE - RMUABKETEESE
ROEFHEMES  WRDAT - eESE
A R ERPOMAERIEEN
B URADWIREKA - mREPHREER
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EREWE

In addition, we will continue to improve operational efficiency
and modify our techniques to enhance automation of production
for better product quality, lower production cost and higher

satisfaction of customers.

Hence, we remain optimistic regarding the prospects of our
Group.

APPRECIATION

We will continue to adhere to our philosophy of “Just for you”,
which includes our staff, shareholders, customers, partners and
the society. | would like to take this opportunity to express my
thanks and gratitude to our Group’s management and staff who
dedicated their endless efforts and devoted services, and to our
Shareholders, suppliers, customers and other professional parties
for their continuous support.

Xu Xipeng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE Wk DM
OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing finished
zippers in China. The Group's customers for zippers are OEMs
who manufacture apparel products for (i) apparel brands in China;
and (i) some well known international apparel labels. The Group
maintains a close working relationship with apparel brand owners
on the design of zippers to be applied on the apparel products.
The apparel brand owners usually decide on the zipper supplier for
their OEMs and place orders with such OEMs who in turn source

zippers from the Group.

The Group also supplies sliders, components of zippers (including
continuous zipper chains and stops) and moulds to other zipper
manufacturers and designs and supplies premium items such
as glasses exclusively to apparel brand owners to meet the
promotional needs for their products. During the year 2012,
approximately 80.5% of the turnover was derived from sales in
China. Other regions to which the Group sold its products include
Switzerland, France, Korea, India, Thailand, Vietnam, South Africa,
Malaysia and Cambodia. In particular, the Group is a supplier of
sliders to a European zipper producer who manufactures zippers
for well known fashion brands.

The Group is a vertically integrated producer for zippers,
except for the electroplating process which is outsourced to an
independent third party. The Group believes the advantages of
vertical integration that the Group benefits from include (i) lower
transaction costs; (ii) higher certainty in the quality of products; (iii)
improved supply chain coordination; (iv) the capture of upstream
and downstream profit margins; and (v) an increase in barriers
to entry for potential competitors. The Group is also capable
of developing its own custom-made production machinery
and modifying conventional machinery so that zippers can be

produced more efficiently and with greater consistency in quality.

mEsE

AEBRPEGENBOEER - AEBEN
WEEPER () PEREME : AR (i) &5
BEEMERERBEEREERHNOEM °
AEEHEREREHERTEARREER
W FRSERTERE - RERERR
FERHOEMEERNBHERLERZF
OEMEHFTER - 2RZFOEMMAAREE
BRI -

2 65 B N ) At i 68 U AE R A BT B - g
Bl (B AERS g R ) RIEE REPIAR
IR RET R M (IR UM H
HEEEMNTE - R 2012 F 8 - AEEY
80.5% =8I RB FEAIHE - NEE
EmiHA At EeER L - EE - BE -
ENfE - B - B EIE - BRAE KR
RE - BEROZ  AEERAZRRE
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To increase market share in target markets and grasp
opportunities for growth, the Group will focus on the following: (i)
enhance its customer portfolio by seeking opportunities to work
with more brands; and (ii) research and develop new products
with new functionalities. To further increase the competitiveness
of the Group, the Group will enhance its production process by
(i) automation; (ii) optimizing the production flow and reduce
scrapping; (iii) improving personnel training to increase efficiency;
(iv) improving efficiency by using the SAP system to better control

inventory, loans and other assets.

PROSPECTS

Along with the continuous economic growth in China, consumer
purchasing power will gradually increase, thus leading to
increasing demands for products that make use of zippers such
as apparel, bags, upholstery furnishings, camping equipment
and sports equipment, and increasing expectations on quality for

zZippers.

Built on the Group’s existing brand portfolio, the Directors intend
to diversify the brand portfolio with both local and international
labels with a view to increasing the Group’'s market share for
quality zippers for both local and international apparel. The Group
will enter into more sales agency contracts in order to develop
the U.S. and European market. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group has a sales and marketing team consisting of one assistant
marketing director, one senior sales manager, ten sales managers
and 50 sales assistants, who are assigned to serve all customers
in three geographical regions: (i) southern China; (ii) eastern China;
and (iii) overseas. The Group will also recruit more experienced

sales staffs to improve the market share.

IR B ARG E TS 0 R MR IE R
B ARERORFEETIEE: (VBB
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The China zipper industry will experience a period of consolidation.
While those enterprises with less competitiveness will be
eliminated by market forces, enterprises with stronger core
competencies, higher qualities, larger economic scale and
higher brand recognition would grow, leading to a higher market
concentration. This would raise the barrier of entry for the industry.
Therefore, the Group may consider to pursue suitable merger
and acquisition opportunities. In addition, the Directors aim to
further strengthen the Group’s position in the quality zipper
market and the Group will continue to strive to achieve growth of
business and ensure that the Group remains competitive through
(i) enhanced marketing which targets apparel brand owners; (ii)
expansion and diversification of finished zipper offerings in terms
of design materials, workmanship, functions and usages such
as finished zippers for footwear products, camping equipments,
bags and upholstery furnishings; (iii) strengthening product
design, research and development capabilities in order to
enhance their international exposure to the apparel industry; (iv)
improving production facilities to increase automation and shorten
production time; and (v) making more extensive and better use
of the SAP system and other automation systems which enables
the Company's subsidiaries and functional departments to better
communicate with one another, better control purchases and

inventory levels, and better monitor deliveries.

TRNBITESKEEAH - HFHEIW
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TURNOVER BEM

The Group's turnover for the year 2012 amounted to HK$157.37 REFENR 2012 FHE %A 157,370,000 75
million, representing a decrease of 17.4% as compared to the year TC 2011 FmA17.4% 0 EZERUTE
2011 primarily as a result of (i) the global financial crisis and the EHOFE () FELEN2IKEREEAER
euro debt crisis which continued for several years; (ii) the slow- INEREBIEEH 5 (i)2012 FR B EIL R T
down of China’s economy in 2012; and (iii) the de-stocking policy B R (i) R B AR AT R B A EE AL SR o
adopted by the apparel industry in China.

Turnover analysis by product category: RERENEDHEEEIIT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2012 2011
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEBT BEBT
Finished zippers e gas
Metal zippers Gl EaTk 73.74 46.9 78.82 41.4
Nylon zippers JERER i 49.10 31.2 71.69 37.6
Plastic zippers paelie Savk i 21.06 13.4 24.38 12.8
143.90 91.5 174.89 91.8
Sliders BV 7.07 45 4.87 2.6
Premium items & 0.21 0.1 3.71 1.9
Others Hh 6.19 3.9 6.96 3.7
Total turnover BEERE 157.37 100.0 190.43 100.0
(BB & Turnover
(HK$ million)
199.22
190.43
160.71 " P -z 15.54 157.37
117.40 > 17 % E B 1347
~ 76.99
> Wy > > TS
< C o € < < 4910
BL S NE B
86.77 78.82
g 5053 § 63.12 g g % 73.74
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 F14 Year
> SE g > [EaEs BRI R - BEREM
Metal zippers Nylon zippers Plastic zippers Sliders,premium items

-| 8 and others



Turnover analysis by geographic location: BB EE S EEIN

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

2012 2011
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEBTT BEBT
Southern China = 66.60 42.3 101.14 53.1
Eastern China EH 60.12 38.2 70.49 37.0
Overseas NSZIN 30.65 19.5 18.80 9.9
Total turnover FEt L 157.37 100.0 190.43 100.0
(BBBY) A Turnover
(HK$ million)
199.22
190.43
160.71 > 20.92 S
’ 157.37
> 14.20 § § > |
117.40 < < o < e o s
B 12 4893 > > >
< 25.49 < < < < 60.12
> > > > >
§ § o758 < 106.13 § 101.14 §
< 79.69 < % < < T
> > > > >
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 €4 Year

#m5 ER 2
> Southern China > Eastern China > Overseas
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FINISHED ZIPPERS

Revenue from sales of finished zippers decreased by
approximately HK$30.99 million or 17.7% to HK$143.90 million
for the year 2012 (2011: HK$174.89 million) primarily due to a
decrease in sales volume. Such decrease was a result of: (i) the
global financial crisis and the euro debt crisis which continued for
several years; (i) the slow-down of China’s economy in 2012; and
(iii) the de-stocking policy adopted by the apparel industry in China.

SLIDERS

Sales of sliders increased by approximately 45.2% to HK$7.07
million for the year 2012 (2011: HK$4.87 million) due to an
increase in sales orders for sliders from a European zipper
producer who manufactures zippers for well known fashion

brands.
PREMIUM ITEMS

Sales of premium items (such as glasses) decreased by
approximately 94.3% to HK$0.21 million for the year 2012 (2011:
HK$3.71 million) due to a decrease of the promotional needs for
premium items brought by the de-stocking policy adopted by the

apparel industry in China.
OTHERS

Others represent items such as scrap materials, zipper
components and moulds, and flat knit ribs. Sales of other items
decreased by approximately 11.1% to HK$6.19 million for the year
2012 (2011: HK$6.96 million) due to a decrease in sales of scrap
materials as a result of the production management improvement

by the Group.

i3 S 0A7]

BB IE 8 U A R2012F /4 W
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G (EREE ) HER2012F M P H94.3% &
210,000 7t (20114 : 3,710,000 7T )
TERPEREITELRBEFLRE - S5
BRmEBIR D -

Hofly

HmEReEEs  NERFREAR
&M 7R Ao A MM R A 8E B R20124F
S #311.1% 26,190,000 7T (2011 4F ¢
6,960,000/ 7T) * RHARAEENEBEEE
BEWEMEERDE -



COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT 858 AR & BRI

In 2012, the overall cost of sales for the Group amounted to R2012F - REBERBHEXNLADAR

approximately HK$113.76 million (2011: HK$127.89 million), 113,760,000 7t(2011 4 : 127,890,000
representing a decrease of approximately 11.0%. The overall TL)  BIEAK11.0% - AEBEEEEFNH
gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 30.3% from 20114 #962,550,00078 LRk 4 4930.3% &
HK$62.55 million in 2011 to HK$43.62 million in 2012. The overall 2012 % /943,620,000 7T » 2012 F & 58
gross profit margin in 2012 was 27.7% (2011: 32.8%), which was M= A27.7% (2011 5 : 32.8%) * JhEHRE
attributable to a decrease of turnover which led to an increase in AT PR BBy B F RIS AN G NFTER -

fixed manufacturing costs per unit.

Gross profit analysis by product category: REMBREIDBEFR ST

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HILEE

2012 2011
HK$ million % HKS$ million %
BEBTT BEBT
Finished zippers RIS R 40.17 92.1 59.75 95.5
Sliders EAVL] 1.93 44 1.49 2.4
Premium items m 0.06 0.1 0.91 1.5
Others Hith 1.46 3.4 0.40 0.6
Total gross profit HER 43.62 100.0 62.55 100.0
(BEBY) EF Gross Profit
(HK$ million)
80.46
? 213
65.13 5 164 62.55
K 1.02 § -y, 040
49.78 s I
2 o5 § § § 43.62
1.53 < < i < c 146
> > > > i 193
< < el < < 59.75 <
> > > > >
< Y c c < < 4017
> > > > >
< < < < <
> > > >
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REERI 58 HI5E ‘R Hit
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FINISHED ZIPPERS

Gross profit for finished zippers decreased by approximately
32.8% from HK$59.75 million in 2011 to HK$40.17 million in
2012. Gross profit margin decreased from approximately 34.2%
to 27.9%, which was attributable to a decrease of turnover which

led to an increase in fixed manufacturing costs per unit.

SLIDERS

Gross profit for sliders increased by approximately 29.5% from
HK$1.49 million in 2011 to HK$1.93 million in 2012. Gross profit
margin, on the other hand, decreased from approximately 30.6%
10 27.3%.

PREMIUM ITEMS

Gross profit for premium items decreased by approximately
93.4% from HK$0.91 million in 2011 to HK$0.06 million in 2012.
Gross profit margin increased from approximately 24.5% to
28.6%.

OTHERS

Gross profit for other items increased by approximately 265.0%
from HK$0.40 million in 2011 to HK$1.46 million in 2012. Gross
profit margin increased from approximately 5.7% to 23.6%,
which was because the portion of sales of scrap materials to third
parties as a percentage over total sales of the “others” category
decreased, and the gross margin for such sales is significantly

lower among the products within the “others” category.

Management Discussion and Analysis

B o
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs mainly represent (i) staff costs relating to sales
and marketing personnel; (ii) transportation costs for delivery
of the Group's products to customers; and (iii) advertising and
promotion expenses. In 2012, the Group's distribution costs
amounted to approximately HK$13.63 million (2011: HK$12.79
million), accounting for approximately 8.7% of the Group's
turnover (2011: 6.7%). The increase in distribution costs was
mainly due to salary increase of experienced and qualified sales
staff.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) salary and welfare
expenses for management and administrative personnel; (ii)
depreciation and amortisation; (iii) auditors’ remuneration; (iv)
product research and development expenses; and (v) other
administrative expenses including professional fees. In 2012,
the Group's administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$28.33 million (2011: HK$31.39 million), which accounted for
approximately 18.0% of the Group's turnover (2011: 16.5%). The
decrease in administrative expenses was mainly due to more

stringent control of various fees and expenses.

Vg i) %S

DERAEZR () EHABEERTSHEREAS
WEINA : (i) ABFPRNAEEERMNE
B - AR (i) EEREHER - 12012
F 0 REE 5 HK A4 713,630,000% 7T
(20114F : 12,790,000/87T) @ hAREEEHE
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EIFTER ©
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FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs represent interest expenses on the Group's bank
borrowings. There is no finance cost in year 2012 (2011: HK$0.26

million).

INCOME TAX

Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation
to the operations of the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

PROFITABILITY

In 2012, the Group's profit attributable to Shareholders amounted
to HK$1.06 million (2011: HK$20.42 million), representing a
decrease of 94.8% as compared to 2011. The decrease was
primarily due to a decrease of turnover which led to an increase
in fixed costs per unit. The margin of profit attributable to
Shareholders for the year was 0.7% (2011: 10.7%), a decrease of

10 percentage points compared to 2011.

During the year, the Group’s return on equity was 0.3% (2011:
6.7%), representing a decrease of 6.4 percentage points as
compared to 2011. The Group's relatively lower return on
equity recorded was a result of a decrease in the Group's profit
attributable to Shareholders.
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INVENTORIES

Inventories are one of the principal components of the
Group's current assets. The value of inventories accounted for
approximately 12.3% and 8.8% of the Group's total current assets
as at 31 December 2011 and 2012 respectively.

Inventories decreased by approximately 28.4% from HK$23.00
million as at 31 December 2011 to HK$16.46 million as at 31
December 2012 as the Company has strengthened its spares
production management and inventory management.

The increase in average inventory turnover days from 63 days in
2011 to 70 days in 2012 was primarily because consumption of
spare zippers produced in 2011 was lower than expected as a
result of the decrease of sales volume.

The write-down on inventories for the year 2012 was HK$902,000
(2011: HK$1.49 million) because of a decrease in the estimated

net realisable value of certain slow-moving inventories.
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TRADE DEBTORS

The Group's policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for
2012 was the same as that in 2011. As at 31 December 2012,
the allowance for doubtful debts was HK$164,000 (31 December
2011: HK$715,000), accounting for 0.5% of the Group's total trade
debtors (2011: 1.9%). The decrease in the allowance for doubtful
debts in 2012 was primarily because the Group made provision for
a one-off doubtful account of approximately HK$374,000 in 2011.

The Group's trade debtors (net) decreased by around 2.4%
from approximately HK$36.05 million as at 31 December 2011
to HK$35.20 million as at 31 December 2012 mainly due to the
decrease in sales.

The increase in average trade debtors turnover days from 77 days
in 2011 to 84 days in 2012 was primarily due to the weakened
demand in the apparel industry, which affected businesses of
our customers and in turn led to a longer credit period for certain

customers.

TRADE CREDITORS

The Group’s trade creditors primarily relate to purchases of raw
materials from suppliers, with credit terms of 7 to 60 days from
trade creditors.

The Group’s trade creditors increased by around 0.9% from
approximately HK$7.44 million as at 31 December 2011 to
HK$7.51 million as at 31 December 2012. The average trade
creditors turnover days increased from 38 days in 2011 to 69 days
in 2012 because of the effective control of purchase and payment.
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OTHER PAYABLES T At A K JH

Other payables mainly represent (i) payroll and staff benefits HAERFIEEEE () TE RENBETEF

payable; (ii) accrued expenses; (iii) payables for taxes other (i) FEETERA (i) ENBIE(BRAERIN)
than income tax; (iv) payables for fixed assets; and (v) advance (iVVEFEEEZENRIE  RVKREE=ZFZ

from a third party. The balance of other payables increased by B EMENIBEARIE NG 104.2% =
approximately 104.2% to HK$25.99 million as at 31 December 2012412 A 31 B #925,990,000% 7t (2011

2012 (2011: HK$12.73 million) due to the advance from a state- £ 112,730,000 7T) THERRBI AR 2 B
owned enterprise and construction project in Jingmen, Hubei, EAR7 AP BUAAL FIFT 8 T2 2SR P ER o

PRC.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES i ) A B A

The following table is a summary of cash flow data for the two TERAEHZE2012F12 A31 B EMEFEH
years ended 31 December 2012: ReEREEHBE -

Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBHLFE

2012 2011

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEET

Net cash generated from operating activities LRSS TR 23.83 32.43
Net cash used in investing activities KRB EHFRAR S F5E (28.42) (85.56)
Net cash generated in financing activities BE RSN EFE 7.05 111.78
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re R EEBYILINFEE 2.46 58.65
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January BT AR RREEEY 76.93 15.58
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEDE R FFR R (0.01) 2.70
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31BMEE

at 31 December FMIR&EEY 79.38 76.93
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The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities for the year
2012 amounted to HK$23.83 million (2011: HK$32.43 million). As
at 31 December 2012, cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$79.38 million, representing a net increase of HK$2.45 million

as compared with the position as at 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group had
no bank loans.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had unutilised bank facilities
amounting to HK$106.06 million. During the year 2012, the Group
did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risks. The gearing ratio,
which was calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by total
equity, was 0% as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets

of approximately HK$151.70 million. The key components of
current assets as at 31 December 2012 included inventories
of approximately HK$16.46 million, trade and other receivables
of approximately HK$48.17 million, deposits with banks of
approximately HK$42.32 million and cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$79.38 million. The key components of current
liabilities included trade and other payables of approximately
HK$33.49 million.

The net current assets decreased from HK$164.39 million as

at 31 December 2011 to HK$151.70 million as at 31 December
2012 primarily due to the increase in trade and other payables of
approximately HK$13.32 million.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, buildings with net book value of
HK$28.85 million (31 December 2011: HK$30.59 million) and
lease prepayments with net book value of HK$4.29 million (31
December 2011: HK$4.40 million) of the Group were pledged to
secure certain unutilised bank facilities of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL. COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments as at 31 December 2011 and 2012 not
provided for in the financial statements were HK$11.62 million and
HK$74.04 million respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and bank deposits and which give rise to receivables and cash
balances that are denominated in United States Dollars (“US$")
under KEE Zippers Corporation Limited.

As HK$ are pegged to US$, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between US$ and HK$ to be
insignificant.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 695 full-time employees
(31 December 2011: 739 full-time employees). The Group reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees annually according
to the relevant market practice and individual performance of
the employees. Save for the social insurance in China and the
mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has
not set aside or accrued any amount of money to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs
incurred in the year 2012 were approximately HK$55.65 million
(2011: HK$51.14 million).

THE INDUSTRIAL PARK IN JINGMEN

On 30 November 2012, KEE Jingmen entered into a main
contractor contract with FIEBEREEER AR (ZhongHui
Construction Group Co., Ltd) for the construction of the garment
accessories industrial park, details of which are set out in the

circular of the Company dated 4 January 2013. It is anticipated that

the garment accessories industrial park will be made available for

use by the end of 2013.

KEE Jingmen intended that the garment accessories industrial
park will produce flat knit ribs, zippers, and other garment
accessories as well as integrate the garment accessories
business of the Group. After the completion of the construction,
it is expected to provide to the Group an additional annual

manufacturing capacity of approximately 40 million pieces of

finished zippers and approximately 80 million pieces of sliders,

which will help the Group to reach its goal by raising its market

share, as well as strengthening the competitiveness of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company has
committed to achieving high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the "Listing Rules”), issued by the Stock Exchange
in October 2011, is the new edition of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Former Code”), and is applicable to
financial reports covering the financial period which ends after 1
April 2012.
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The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the

principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
has complied with all the Code Provisions set out in the CG Code
during the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 as well
as the Former Code during the financial period from 1 January
2012 to 31 March 2012.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships
between the members of the Board are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 47 to b4 of the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the presence of executive
Directors during the year.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and BEEREHZE2012F12 A3 BEFELE
general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31 EFgea AR RRRAS MRS W

December 2012 is set out below: ™
Annual
Board General EEE RERBEF
The Board Meetings Meeting =y =t e
Attendance  Attendance HER Mg E
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) 6/6 11 HialEEE (%) 6/6 11
Mr. Xu Xinan 6/6 11 FriRm e 6/6 171
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert 6/6 il G- 6/6 il
Non-executive Director B TTEE
Mr. Yang Shaolin 6/6 11 B ME A 6/6 171
Independent non-executive Directors BUHBTEE
Mr. Lin Bin 6/6 M ORI E 6/6 M
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 6/6 11 JT BT S A 6/6 11

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 6/6 il ERAERAE 6/6 il




34

Corporate Governance Report
= 'M\Aiﬁd:

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for chairing the meetings,
managing the operations of the Board, and ensuring that all major
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for running the Company’s businesses and implementing the
Group's strategic plans and business goals. Their respective

responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers

all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND FEPAT A B R
DIRECTORS’ RE-ELECTION

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive EEATUNZTFRNEXEA L 1GHETE - IF

Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re- WITESERECAH  WARSER M
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all Directors SFRMEXEA 4215 - MBEZTEHE
i'—‘ﬂ

7

appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by TRIEFRETEZARZERRREARE
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and raRRER ASNES(BRIRETE
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, REFECER)AELB=FHESR K-
shall be subject to retire

t by rotation at least once every three i 3

-

rectors of the Company is ppoked foL specific
ee years and is subject to retirement by rotation once
every three years. i
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions

objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary and senior management. The directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and

management of the Company are delegated to the management.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for directors will be
arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be issued to

directors where appropriate.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company on

continuous professional development during the year.

Reading Attending
Name of Directors Materials Seminars
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) v v
Mr. Xu Xinan v v
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert v v
Non-executive Director
Mr. Yang Shaolin v v
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Bin v/ v
Mr. Kong Hing Ki v v
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy v v

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange's website and are available to shareholders upon

request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under

"Corporate Information” on page 2.

REBEARBIMELCE  EERFRAECEXH
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system and relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended 31
December 2012 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise

concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without
the presence of the executive Directors.

The attendance record of each Director at the Audit Committee
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2012 is set out below:

Audit Committee Attendance
Mr. Lin Bin (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 3/3

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 3/3
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; reviewing and making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate

in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met three times to review and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, and to determine the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and senior management and

other related matters.

The attendance record of each Director at the Remuneration
Committee meetings of the Company held during the year ended

31 December 2012 is set out below:

Remuneration Committee Attendance
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Xu Xipeng 3/3
Mr. Lin Bin 3/3

The remuneration of senior executives by band for the year ended
31 December 2012 is set out below:

Number of persons

HKD200,000 to HKD300,000
HKD400,000 to HKD500,000
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
directors, and assessing the independence of independent non-

executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of
the Company by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process

when necessary.

The Nomination Committee met twice to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.

The attendance record of each Director at the Nomination
Committee meetings of the Company held during the year ended
31 December 2012 is set out below:

Nomination Committee Attendance
Mr. Kong Hing Ki (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Xu Xinan 2/2

Mr. Lin Bin 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code, and the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 75 to 190.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company's external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out under note 5(c) to the
Notes to the Financial Statements on page 119.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Yan Wing, Rita of Tricor Services Limited, external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as its joint company
secretary. Its primary contact persons at the Company are Mr. Xu
Haizhou and Mr. Yung Chi Hung Quincy, joint company secretary
and chief financial officer respectively of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
areholder meetings, including the election of individual
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)

by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS

There are no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures

set out in the preceding paragraph.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong:

Address: Room 2101A, Tower 2, China Hong Kong City,
33 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2369 1388

Email: Andy.xu@kee.cn/Quincy.yung@kee.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, apart from
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2369 2288 or (852)
2369 2118 for any assistance.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of
the Board, all other members of the Board including Non-executive
Directors, independent non-executive Directors, and the chairmen
of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make themselves
available at the annual general meetings to meet shareholders and

answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERBE

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of seven
Directors, including three executive Directors, one non-executive

Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Xipeng (5F838), aged 47, is an executive Director,
chairman of the Board, one of the founders of the Group and
an elder brother of Mr. Xu Xinan. Mr. Xu is responsible for the
formulation of development strategies, overseeing of the overall
business of the Group and the operation of the Board. Mr. Xu
has over 20 years of experience in the zipper industry, especially
on the overall management and production supervision. He was
appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2010.

Mr. Xu Xinan (55837), aged 42, is an executive Director, the
chief executive officer, one of the founders of the Group and
the younger brother of Mr. Xu Xipeng. Mr. Xu is responsible for
the implementation of the decisions of the Board and the overall
guidance and supervision of our business. Mr. Xu has over 20
years of experience in the zipper industry, especially on the overall
management, and sales and marketing. He was appointed as an

executive Director on 6 July 2010.
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Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert (E7%3), aged 61, is an executive
Director. Mr. Chow was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 6 July 2010 and re-designated as an executive Director on 1
April 2012. Mr. Chow joined the Group in 2005 and has advised
the Group on business strategy and business development. Mr.
Chow has over 21 years' experience in corporate management
and holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce from McMaster
University in Canada. Mr. Chow is also a member of The Society
of Management Accountants of Canada (also known as CMA
Canada). Mr. Chow's work experience prior to joining the
Company includes:

° from 1988 to 1991, as the regional finance director of Frank
Small & Associates Limited, an Australian market research
company;

° from 1992 to 1996, as chief operating officer and director
and one of the founders of Asia Market Intelligence Limited,

a market research company in Hong Kong; and

° from 1999 until the date of this annual report, as the
managing director, the founder and the sole shareholder
of Inetol Cyber Limited (NEBAER A7) of Hong Kong,
a company engaged in manufacturing and trading of

headwear.

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Shaolin (8 2>#%), aged 39, is a non-executive Director.
Mr. Yang was appointed as an executive Director on 6 July
2010 and was the chief financial officer and one of the joint
company secretaries. Mr. Yang was re-designated as a non-
executive Director and resigned as the chief financial officer and
joint company secretary of the Company on 1 April 2012. Mr.
Yang joined the Group in December 2008 and has over 15 years’
experience in corporate management and financial management.
Mr. Yang worked as an accountant and later as a finance manager
in various manufacturing enterprises (including B/MN&R1T&EAR
fR /A7) (Guangzhou KYH Metal Co., Ltd.) for over two and a half
years) prior to joining the Group. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree
in Economics majoring in accounting from 1t & Z6 (Beijing
Wouzi University) in 1997, then obtained a MBA Master's Degree
from Sun Yat-Sen University in 2012. Mr. Yang is also a member
of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Yang was appointed on 22
October 2012 as a chief financial officer of E#/GX S E &)

B2 2 7] (Guangdong Haid Group Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 002311),
a company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Bin (#3R), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 August 2010. Mr. Lin graduated
from JIFEBF & K E (Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics)
in 1984 with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics majoring in
industrial accounting. Mr. Lin obtained his Doctorate Degree
in Economics (Accountancy) from EFIAE: (the University of
Xiamen) in 1997. Mr. Lin has served in various positions as tutor,
lecturer and associate professor in the Faculty of Economics and
Management in ERBEAE (East China Jiaotong University).
Currently, Mr. Lin is a professor of the department of accountancy
in LKE (Sun Yat-Sen University). His roles in public services
include:

e the vice chairman of ER A NEPEETHE (the Association of
Internal Audit of Guangdong Province);

e the vice chairman of ERAEFTEE (the Audit Society of
Guangdong Province);

e acommittee member of FREHESSHUELEZED
(the Committee of Accounting Education of the Accounting
Society of China); and

e a member of FEARKMBAIEICEANITIEFIEELE
ERHHEZRA (the Consultation Team for Enterprise Internal
Control Standards of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC).

Mr. Lin resigned as a director of the department of accountancy
in FILKE (Sun Yat-Sen University) after January 2013 and
resigned as a director of @FFEELTHEHFH L (the Education
Centre of Master of Professional Accounting) of AILAE (Sun
Yat-Sen University) since 13 March 2013.

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Lin also acts as an independent (non-executive) director of:

e REMNBEEBEHRSRMBER AT (Guangzhou Baiyun
International Airport Company Limited), a company whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange;

o FYMEBERMHAERAA (Shenzhen Aisidi Company
Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange;

o LEFLEGEMEMRAT (Auhui SaunaKing Company
Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange; and

o BEMIWIMARMHAERZAT (Guangzhou Zhujiang Brewery
Co., Ltd.), a company whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kong Hing Ki (CTf3), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 November 2010. He
has over 15 years' experience in accounting, auditing and finance,
gained from international accountancy and commercial firms.
Currently, he is a financial controller of a company whose
ultimate holding company is listed on the main board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and is an
independent non-executive director and the audit committee
chairman of Hing Lee (HK) Holdings Limited (stock code: 396),
a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board, and also
an independent non-executive director of RENHENG Enterprise
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8012), a company whose shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Mr. Kong obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Commerce from The Australian National University and a Master
of Business Administration Degree from Deakin University. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (fZ/B%), aged 49, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 August 2010. Mr.
Tam graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a Professional Diploma in Accountancy in 1986 and is a fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
26 years' experience in accounting, auditing and finance. He is
currently president of Essentack Limited, a corporate strategy
and management advisory company. He is also an independent
non-executive director and the audit committee chairman of Kith
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1201), a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board, and also an independent non-executive
director and the nomination committee chairman of RENHENG
Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code: 8012), a company whose
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Tam was also appointed on 18 January 2013 as
an independent non-executive director and the audit committee
chairman of Long Success International (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 8017), a company whose shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

Mr. Yung Chi Hung Quincy (§%&78), aged 44, is the Chief
Financial Officer responsible for overseeing finance & accounting,
investment strategy, information technology, and internal audit.
Mr. Yung graduated from University of Wisconsin — Madison,
USA in 1994 with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
majoring in Accounting. Mr. Yung obtained his Master Degree
in Business Administration in 2004 from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). Prior to his joining the
Group, Mr. Yung has over 17 years of experience in financial
planning, financial management and internal audit in retail and
manufacturing industry.

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Hsieh Chin Fong (#{E2), aged 68, is the chief technical
officer responsible for overseeing various aspects of product
design, and research and development departments. He has
many years of experience in the zipper industry includilng Zipper
production and the development of zipper productioln_ chinery.
Prior to joining the Group in November 2004, Mr)ieh had
worked for several zipper manufacturers in Taiwﬁlb-l\/lr. Hsieh
acted as a senior specialist in AR FER ) BRA 7 (Max Zipper
Co., Ltd) from 1987 to 1993 and acted as a general fr'.na '
SRR AR AT (Unitech Zipper & Machinery C

1992 to 2004. Y
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Ms. Li Yan Wing, Rita (Z075), aged 47, was appointed as
a joint company secretary of the Company on 25 November
2010. Ms. Li is a director of the corporate services division of
Tricor Services Limited and an associate of both The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She has over 23 years'
experience in corporate advisory services. Prior to joining Tricor
Services Limited, Ms. Li served as a senior manager of the
company secretarial department of Tengis Limited. Ms. Li has
provided various secretarial and corporate services to many listed

companies.

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are design, manufacture and sale of
finished zippers, flat knit ribs and other garment accessories in
China. The Group’s major customers are OEMs who manufacture
apparel products for (i) apparel brands in China; and (i) some well

known international apparel labels.

The Group also supplies sliders, components of zippers (including
continuous zipper chains and stops) and moulds to other zipper
manufacturers and designs and supplies premium items (such
as glasses) exclusively to apparel brand owners to meet the
promotional needs for their products.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the “Consolidated Income Statement” on page 77

of this annual report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2
cents per Share (2011: HK1.25 cents) in respect of the year 2012
to the Shareholders.

Upon approval at the annual general meeting on 24 May 2013,
the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about Monday, 17
June 2013 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Friday, 31 May 2013.
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RESERVES fits fii

As at 31 December 2012, distributable reserves of the Company MN2012F12A318  XARADE#HESR
amounted to HK$139.93 million (2011: HK$138.26 million). Details 139,930,000787t(2011 4 : 138,260,000

of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out ) AEBFRNRENEBFBHNES
in consolidated statement of changes in equity to the consolidated HHRENGEEREERA -

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEE P R R

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers AEERREMBFEADRRNEEZERR K
and suppliers respectively for the two financial years were as follows: HERELNHESEMFEBENT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

2012 2011

% of total % of total

turnover turnover

AR RN (HRZEETEN

Ehalnd Aok

The largest customer BARF 6.6 6.4
Five largest customers AREF 18.0 17.4

The information required in paragraph 31(5) of Appendix 16 to the BIE LB ER16E31(7) R - il Bl
Listing Rules is omitted pursuant to paragraph 31(7) of Appendix PE16EIVIBIBRATARTMNER A FEBE R
16 to the-Listing Rules since the percentage of total turnover AASE2012F 12431 BILEFERLARP

attributable to the five largest customers combined for the year é%%{ﬁ%%%@%ﬁg%th%’m&o% BB
ended 31 Decembér 2012 was approximately 18.0%, i.e. less than 30% o 3 ;
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BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no bank loans (2011: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’'s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARES

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during
the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 10 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Xinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yang Shaolin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Bin

Mr. Kong Hing Ki

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy

In accordance with articles 87(1) and (2) of the Company'’s articles
of association, Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert, Mr. Kong Hing Ki
and Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 47 to 54 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at the end of
the year or any time during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company of his/her compliance with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company entered into on 30
December 2010 (details are disclosed in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders”).
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the deed of non-competition have been complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or competed or is
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December

2012 and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly
basis for its employees. The Group has no further obligation for
payment of post-retirement benefits to employees beyond the

aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group and are
under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’
monthly salaries. The mandatory contributions required to be
made respectively by the Group and an employee are each capped
at HK$1,250 per month. Members are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to
the MPF Scheme but all benefits derived from the mandatory
contributions must be preserved until an employee reaches the
retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF

Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2012.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors in the
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows:

HEPOJR AR 2 i s ICAT T R B 4 2
ISy ~ B B B s ARl i v 2
B/ R

M20124 12 A31H  EERARQRIHEMT
AR ZE (TR AEHLAEEMN(E S
REAERGI 1B XV 2B BIEE H L &H 5
352 EZERE R SRR E AR AT LT BT
ANERHITESR HIRETABMNG AT
RBEBHA T2 K 2 BT

LoNG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES R Z 353

Director Nature of Interest Number of Shares Percentage
- ERtE B & Aok
Mr. Xu Xipeng #T #3855 4 Corporate A A 306,490,000 73.85%
Mr. Xu Xinan #F 857 50 £ Corporate A & 306,490,000 73.85%
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert B3t 5E4  Beneficial Owner & A A 380,000 0.09%
Mr. Kong Hing Ki ;T 5% £ Beneficial Owner BB A 380,000 0.09%
Mr. Lin Bin M 55 4 Beneficial Owner Ez5HEH A 380,000 0.09%
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy BB L4 Beneficial Owner Bz A A 380,000 0.09%
Mr. Yang Shaolin #5 Dot 4 Beneficial Owner Em 1B A 380,000 0.09%
LoNG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED A IR 35 18 2 JBe B B A B DB 4y 2 3 4%
CORPORATION

Director Name of Associated Corporation Percentage
£ LB AR ke
Mr. Xu Xipeng #F 855 56 £ Nicco 49.75%
Mr. Xu Xinan #F 857 55 4 Nicco 49.75%
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert &3 Y 54 Nicco 0.50%

As at 31 December 2012, the Directors do not hold any short
positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives
or any of their associates had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations were recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2012.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial Shareholders
maintained under section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company
had been notified of the following substantial Shareholders’
interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital:

b ESCPRIREEE SN - 2012812 A31 8 -
EE FETBRABSRBEZEMBEAL
ik NN IR R EV E )N el S
R R EEE R EAIRIRESF KA EED
FEI2 KRR BEFEZ Bz E kR
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Py Z 2k B R AT

201212 A31 B REFEFFHRHEED
FIBHKHFEZEEZREEZMET - A2
BEME THEBRR 2 LABERR
Al EEITIRAL% A £ -

Name Number of Shares Percentage
=718 (e Bkt
Nicco 306,490,000 73.85%
Mr. Xu Xipeng #F #5154 (Note fif=E 1) 306,490,000 73.85%
Mr. Xu Xinan & #3744 (Note Ffizt 2) 306,490,000 73.85%
Ms. Ke Saixia o] 288 224~ (Note fifzE 1) 306,490,000 73.85%
Ms. Lu Jiehong & 24T 22+ (Note {7t 2) 306,490,000 73.85%
Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited 24,644,000 5.94%
Ms. Liu Yang #|# 22+ (Note I3t 3) 24,644,000 5.94%
Notes: D

1. As Nicco is beneficially owned as to 49.75% by Mr. Xu Xipeng, Mr. Xu Xipeng
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Nicco by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO. Ms. Ke Saixia, being Mr. Xu Xipeng's spouse, is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Nicco under Part XV of the SFO.
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2. As Nicco is beneficially owned as to 49.75% by Mr. Xu Xinan, Mr. Xu Xinan
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Nicco by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO. Ms. Lu Jiehong, being Mr. Xu Xinan's spouse, is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Nicco under Part XV of the SFO.

3. These shares are owned by Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited, which is 100%
beneficially owned by Ms. Liu Yang.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of
a short position in the shares and underlying shares or debentures
of the Company that was required to be recorded under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Both Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan are executive Directors
and Controlling Shareholders and therefore are connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan (as
lessors) and KEE Guangdong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (as lessee), entered into a lease agreement (the
“Lease Agreement”) on 12 August 2010 pursuant to which
Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan have agreed to lease to KEE
Guangdong the production base in Foshan City of Guangdong
Province at a monthly rental of RMB260,000 payable within the
first 10 working days of each month for an initial term of three
years commencing on 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012. An
independent property valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, advised
that the monthly rental of RMB260,000 is fair and reasonable with
reference to the market rate. For each of the three years ending 31
December 2012, the annual rental paid and payable by the Group
(the “Annual Cap”) under the Lease Agreement was as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2010 EZE 201012 B 31 HIFFE
Year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE 2011 F12 A31 BILFE
Year ending 31 December 2012 #Z% 2012412 A31 BILFE

2. A Nicco AT m A A BB 49.75% *
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B XV E AR BT Nicco BT B (5 B 1

= e

3. It /% 19 F1 Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited
%A AR HBRZLTEREF100% ©
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KB IGHIE XV A5 336 (AT L2 D ER
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RMB HK$
AR BT
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3,120,000 3,761,472
3,120,000 3,761,472
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Given the annual rental amount payable by KEE Guangdong, the
transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement, which
constitute continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34,
fall within the ambit of Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules and is
only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules, the annual
review requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the
Listing Rules and the requirements set out in Rules 14A.35(1) and
14A.35(2) of the Listing Rules. A waiver from the announcement
requirements set out in Rule 14A.47 of the Listing Rules was
granted by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since the details of the
Lease Agreement have been disclosed in the Prospectus under
the section headed “Connected Transaction”.

Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan (as lessors) entered into a lease
renewal agreement (the “Lease Renewal Agreement”) on 7
December 2012 with KEE Guangdong (as lessee) for a term of
3 years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 at a monthly
rental of RMB300,000 payable within the first 10 days of each
month commencing on 1 January 2013.

The Company has complied with the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, including the Annual
Cap, and will re-comply with the relevant rules of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules (including independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements) if the waiver from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
expires or the Annual Cap is exceeded, or when the Lease
Renewal Agreement expires or is renewed or when there is a
material change to the terms of the Lease Renewal Agreement.

ANNUAL REVIEW
The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)

have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the Lease Agreement governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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KPMG, the auditors of the Company, was engaged to report on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and reported their findings to the Board that the
transactions:

(i) have been approved by the Board;

(i)  have been entered into in accordance with the Lease
Agreement during the year; and

(i) have not exceeded the Annual Caps.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, the
related-party transactions set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements also include transactions which did not
constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of other related-party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2012, which did not constitute connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set out in notes 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the written resolutions
of the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on 14 December
2010, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion
and on such terms as it may think fit, grants options to any
employee(s) (whether full time or part time including any Director)
of any member of the Group at the exercise price for such number
of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the
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Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Board to grant options to selected employee(s)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential

contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 40,000,000 Shares which represents
approximately 9.6% of the Shares in issue on the date of this
report. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant

shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in
the offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum

holding period before an option is exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-
one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable to our Company on acceptance of the offer for the

grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always
that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which
must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the exercise price shall in no event

be less than the nominal amount of one Share.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, 24,600,000 share HZE2012F 12831 B1EFE - ARARE
options were granted by the Company. 24,600,000 17 B A& 42 o

As at 31 December 2012, the executive Directors, non-executive 2012412 A31H » ZEEHTES -~ I
Directors and employees of the Group have the following interests HTEEREERBERETZEE U TZ
under the Share Option Scheme. £

o

Bl

Closing Price of

the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Offered
Date of Exercise  at1.12012 Duringthe Duringthe During at31.12.2012 SEERE
Director  Offer Price 20126 Year Year the Year 20126 Exercise Period  HEE AAIES
ESptE RERH ke NBEF  FRRE TRTE FAXN 12B31BER {1 G
Yang Shaolin - 27.05.2011 1.39 318,000 - - 318,000 0 From the day after 1.25
B the 2011 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
MONFFRRER
LEAR01655E
EENEER
27.06.201 1.39 318,000 - - 318,000 0 From the day after 1.25
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
R012FFEEER
EEREN6FFE

FENEER
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Director

ESfg

Date of
Offer
BERH

27.05.2011

27.05.201

27.05.2011

Outstanding

Exercise at 1.1.2012
Price R20125F
#E 1R1B4%

1.39 424,000
1.39 424,000
1.39 636,000

Granted  Exercised  Lapsed
During the During the  During

Year Year the Year
ERREE  TRTE FRAN
- - 424,000

- - 424,000

- - 636,000

Outstanding
at 31.12.2012

R20125
12831047

0

Exercise Period

T8

From the day after
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
M201BFEEREED
EEREN6FFE
¥ELEER

From the day after
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
H0UFFERER
EEARN165EE
#ENEER

From the day after
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
M2015FFERED
ERAE0165FE
¥ENEEA

Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Offered
SEERE
RERAARS
Gl

1.25



Closing Price of

the Securities

Immediately

before the Date

on Which the

Options were

Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Offered

Date of Exercise  at112012 Duringthe Duringthe During at31.12.2012 SiRRRE

Director  Offer Price 120126 Year Year the Year 20126 Exercise Period HEEHAIHEH
BBpE  BERE RE  1A1B&EF  ERRE TRTE ERAN 12B31R&R TS W

ChowHoi  07.12.2012 0.60 - 380,000 - 380,000 From the day after 0.58
Kwang, the 2012 annual
Albert results being
AER announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced

BNEFEEEN

Yang Shaolin  07.12.2012 0.60 - 380,000 - - 380,000  From the day after 0.58
B the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced

B1FFEEER
SERR017EEE

FENEER

Lin Bin 07.12.2012 0.60 - 380,000 - - 380,000  From the day after 0.58
R the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
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Closing Price of

the Securities

Immediately

before the Date

on Which the

Options were

Offered

SEERE

Exercise Period HEEZHAIES
[ Gl

Outstanding Granted  Exercised
at1.1.2012  During the During the
120125 Year Year theYear 20126
1A1B&R  FRRE TRTR FREAM 12A31B4%E

380,000 - -

Lapsed Outstanding
Date of Exercise During at 31.12.2012
Director Offer Price

EEfd RERY e

Kong Hing ki 07.12.2012 060 -
TR

380,000  From the day after 0.58
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BNNFEEEER
LEAR017FERE
$ENEEH

Tam Yuk 07.12.2012 0.60 - 380,000 - -

380,000  From the day after 0.58

/0

Sang,
Sammy

i

the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B201FERFER
LEARN1TFERE
#ENEER

Employeesin 27.05.2011
aggregate
ZitEE

1.39 2,436,000

- 438,000 1,998,000  From the day after
the 2011 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
EONFEREER
EEARN165EE
#ELEEA



Closing Price of

the Securities

Immediately

before the Date

on Which the

Options were

Employees Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Lapsed Outstanding Offered
in Date of Exercise  at1.1.2012 Duringthe Duringthe Duringthe at31.12.2012 SiRRRE
aggregate  Offer Price 12012 Year Year Year 20126 Exercise Period  HEEHAIHES
ZitEE  BERH TRE 1MBERE  ERRE TROR ERAN 12B31R&R TS W

27.05.2011 139 2,436,000 - - 438,000 1,998,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results
being announced
m012FEEEE
AEEAZ0165F
FEEENEER

27.05.2011 1.39 3,248,000 - - 584,000 2,664,000  From the day after 125
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
H01FFERER
EEAZ165EE
#ENEEH

27.05.2011 139 3,248,000 - - 584,000 2,664,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
HUFFERER
LERENI6FFE
#ENLER
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Employees Outstanding Granted
in Date of Exercise  at1.1.2012  During the
aggregate  Offer Price 12012 Year
ZitEE  BERH 88 1R1BEE  ERRE
27.06.201 139 4,872,000 -
07.12.2012 0.60 - 3,405,000
07.12.2012 0.60 - 3,405,000

Exercised  Lapsed
During the During the
Year Year

TRITE  FREN

- 876,000

Outstanding
at 31.12.2012

R20125
12831047

Exercise Period
T
3,996,000  From the day after
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
M2015FEREER
EEREN6FFE
¥ELEER

3,405,000  From the day after
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BO1FFEXER
ERAR0TEER
EFUNo=
3,405,000  From the day after
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B2013FERFER
LEARN17FEE
#ENEEH
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Closing Price of

the Securities

Immediately

before the Date

on Which the

Options were

Employees Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Lapsed Outstanding Offered
in Date of Exercise  at1.1.2012 Duringthe Duringthe Duringthe at31.12.2012 SiRRRE
aggregate  Offer Price 12012 Year Year Year 20126 Exercise Period  HEEHAIHES
ZitEE  BERH TRE 1BERE  ERRE TROR ERAN 12B31R&R T W E

07.12.2012 0.60 - 4,540,000 - - 4,540,000 From the day after 0.58
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B04EFERER
LEARN17FERE
FUN

07.12.2012 0.60 - 4,540,000 - - 4,540,000  From the day after 0.58
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
E2015FEREER
EEAR0TEEE
#ENEEH

07.12.2012 0.60 - 6,810,000 - - 6,810,000  From the day after 0.58
the 2016 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B2016FFREED
SERENITEER
¥ENEER
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less
than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire as auditors of the Company and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Xu Xipeng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A RS

eprac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
KEE Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of KEE
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 77 to 190, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement For the year ended 31 December 2012

melmE B s0125 13 Aot B (ABAI)
2012 2011
Note $'000 $'000
liEs3 Fx 7
Turnover E 3 3 157,373 190,433
Cost of sales HEMRA (113,755) (127,888)
Gross profit EF 43,618 62,545
Other revenue EAb e 4 3,629 7,204
Other net loss Hih g8 F (1,600) (373)
Distribution costs 7 $HRAR (13,630) (12,788)
Administrative expenses TR (28,330) (31,389)
Profit from operations Feg =gyl 3,687 25,199
Finance costs AR 5(a) - (267)
Profit before taxation BRBL A& A 5 3,687 24,938
Income tax FriS#it 6 (2,859) (4,516)
Profit for the year FERER 828 20,422
Attributable to: AT B IRAELL
Equity shareholders RRARIERICR
of the Company 1,055 20,422
Non-controlling interests IR R (227) -
Profit for the year FRER 828 20,422
Basic and diluted earnings BREAR
per share ($) WERF (B) 10 0.003 0.05
The notes on pages 86 to 190 form part of these financial £ 86%F 190 B v MR AN Bz 2 —&
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of Do BBFRNENFRENAAGEERE L
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in A2 - HFIEE MM 23(b) ©

note 23(b).




Consolidated Statement of

\‘g’ ComprehenSive Income For the year ended 31 December 2012
FE2ERER B2 20125 15 79 BUE PR (BRI
2012 2011
Note $'000 $'000
LiEs: F T
Profit for the year FRER 828 20,422
Other comprehensive FREMEEEA
income for the year
Exchange differences on BREME QTR
translation of financial SRR ES
statements of subsidiaries HOBE 5, Z 58 59 12,736
Total comprehensive FAZEB AL
income for the year 887 33,158
Attributable to: LT B IRELL
Equity shareholders RRARIERICR
of the Company 1,020 33,158
Non-controlling interests IR (133) -
Total comprehensive FAZEB AL
income for the year 887 33,158
The notes on pages 86 to 190 form part of these financial F 862 190 B 2 M sT B AN B 15 3k 2 — &6
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

e BB R

At 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
72012412 A 31 B (LUBITAIR)

2012 2011
Note $'000 $'000
B &E Fr Tt
Non-current assets FERBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 12
— Property, plant and equipment —WZ - B R 122,651 107,540
- Lease prepayments —MHEBEN 33,543 4,395
156,194 111,935
Intangible assets mREE 13 6,668 7,463
Prepayments for fixed assets ElE & ER TR FUIAR 15 212 21,551
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B 18(c) 2,015 1,634
165,089 142,483
Current assets wmEE
Inventories Ea s 16 16,464 22,995
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A FEUGRIE 17 48,169 40,793
Current tax recoverable BERRI g B 71 18(a) 1,354 2,297
Deposits with banks IRITEHAITF K 19 42,320 43,549
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 19 79,383 76,928
187,690 186,562
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R HE A E A 20 33,494 20,172
Current tax payable BHEAFE TR 1B 18(a) 2,494 2,004
35,988 22,176
Net current assets MENEE R 151,702 164,386
Total assets less current liabilities RAEERREBESE 316,791 306,869




Consolidated Statement of

{3’ Financial Position At 31 December 2012
e MBRRR a0t 12731 A BRI
2012 2011

Note $'000 $'000
B &E Fr Tt

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERE 18(c) 1,111 -

Net assets REEE 315,680 306,869

Capital and reserves EXRRFHE 23

Share capital fi& s 4,150 4,150

Reserves & 299,636 302,719

Total equity attributable to equity 7~ FREZEIRR

shareholders of the company FE(EREzR 4R %R 303,786 306,869
Non-controlling interests IR R 11,894 -
Total equity FERBER 315,680 306,869

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 BEEE2MN201343 A22 B ETIRET)EE -

March 20183.

Xu Xipeng Xu Xinan EFE EE

Director Director Bl 5

The notes on pages 86 to 190 form part of these financial 86X 190 B Z MFT B AN 15 sk < — &6
statements. e
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Statement of Financial Position

ISR R

At 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
72012412 A 31 B (LUBITHIR)

2012 2011
Note $'000 $'000
B &E Fr Tt
Non-current assets FERBEE
Interest in a subsidiary S REYNCIPA - T 14 = -
Current assets wEEE
Amount due from a subsidiary e —FE B A B 2 FIE 26(d) 17,403 143,174
Loan to a subsidiary ERTHEAT 26(d) 128,603 -
Other receivables E At EMCRIE 17 328 270
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY 19 15 403
146,349 143,847
Current liabilities wmE®E
Other payables R ANE e 20 639 625
639 625
Net assets BEFH 145,710 143,222
Capital and reserves ERRfEHE 23
Share capital &N 4,150 4,150
Reserves i 141,560 139,072
Total equity R BEE 145,710 143,222

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22

March 2013.

Xu Xipeng
Director

Xu Xinan
Director

The notes on pages 86 to 190 form part of these financial

statements.

EEEN2013F3A 228 AW ERET

e

EBEZE
BE)

86 % 190

e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 31 December 2012

%AEE@E 2‘% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
wh 3

HZE2012412 A31 BIEFE (WUBTHIR)

82

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

NG
Non-
Share  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controlling  Total
Share premium reserve reserve reserve earnings interests  equity
capital B EX EiE EXR O RE  Total EER 0 E&
B BE  GE 0 BE  BE 0 BN &% BE  4F
Note ~ $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $'000  $'000  $'000
W fr fx fr fr fr . fr . fn
Balance at 1 January 2011 ROME1 A 1088 - - 15432 13044 15664 91699 135839 - 135839
Changes in equity for 2011; WM ENERSE
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - 2042 2042 - 2042
Other comprehensive income Efp2ENA - - - - 1273% - 1273 - 12736
Total comprehensive income EMAEE - - - - 7 W4 BB - BB
Appropriation to statutory reserve AR EEEEA - - - 2597 - (2597) - - -
Issuance of shares by share offer ~ BBRMZERARG Blod) 4150 138,006 - - - - 142,246 - 14226
Interim dividends declared in RAEESR
respect of the current year m#RE 23(b) - - - - - (5188 (189 - (5189
Eauity settled share-based NEREERD
fransactions KRS 23(f) - - 8 - - -8 - 81
Balance at 31 December 2011 RONE1RENAHE 4150 138096 16246 15641 28400 104336 306,369 - 306,869
Balance at 1 January 2012 R2012E1R 1888 4150 138096 16246 15641 28400 104336 306,369 - 306,369
Changes in equity for 2012; WIENEREE.
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - 1,05 1,055 (227) 828
Other comprehensive income E2ARA - - - - (35) - (35) 9% 59
Total comprehensive income SN - - - - - (mo1m 100 (13 87
Appropriation to statutory reserve ~ AR EETREAE - - - 66 - [66D) - - -
Dividends declared in respect RIERSRNRE
of the previous year 23(b) - - - - - (5188 (5,188) - (5,188)
Equity settled share-based IEREER(R
fransactions ZRRRS 23 - - 8 - - - 8T - 8
Contribution from non-controling ~ FERIERRRTE
equity holders - - 210 - - - 20 12027 12,237
Share options lapsed during the year RAERKIEERTE 22(alfi - - (60) - - 60 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2012 RNFE12ANAHE 4150 138096 17271 16306 28365 99,598 303786 11,894 315,680

The notes on pages 86 to 190 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 December 2012

mERERER B2 s0r5 12 791 BILAE (BRI
2012 2011
Note $'000 $'000
B &E Fr Tt
Operating activities KEEE
Profit before taxation FR A A& A 3,687 24,938
Adjustments for: FE
Depreciation and amortisation e K SN 5(c) 13,789 12,436
Impairment losses (written back)/ BEEIE (B E),FEA
charged on trade and B 5 & H b RN FRIA
other receivables 5(c) (151) (1,075)
Impairment losses on inventories GFERBEEE 16 902 1,487
Finance costs BE KA 5(a) - 261
Interest income FEMA 5(c) (2,922) (1,869)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets  HEREIFEEEH FIE/FEE 5(c) 686 237
Equity-settled share-based NEREERO TR
payment expenses 5(b) 875 814
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss SN (BF)), B (52) 4,469
16,814 43,848
Changes in working capital EEESEE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERAD (8 m) 5,632 (5,201)
(Increase)/decrease in trade H 5 R E A W GRIA
and other receivables (g, @b (7,631) 5,869
Increase/(decrease) in trade B 5 R EAMERFIE
and other payables #h0,7 G ) 9,817 (4,571)
Cash generated from operations  &Zfr53HEE 24,632 39,945
Income tax paid BAEERL 18(a) (794) (7,519)
Net cash generated from RETHMEBRSTFE

operating activities 23,838




84

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE20124612 A31 B ILFE (UBTAIR)

2012 2011
Note $'000 $'000
B &E T T
Investing activities REZE
Payment for purchase of EEWME - BEX
property, plant and equipment B OB (26,190) (18,740)
Payment for purchase of EEHERNMNR
lease prepayments (8,105) (21,061)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME  BE&
plant and equipment RAEATS A 1,355 149
Payment for purchase of BEEMEENNR
intangible assets 13 (38) (3,331)
Interest received EURE 3,330 968
Decrease/(increase) in RITEEITFFOR A (38 hn)
deposits with banks 1,229 (43,549)
Net cash used in RETEIARESFE
investing activities (28,419) (85,564)



2012 2011
Note $'000 $'000
B &E T T

Financing activities AL EE
Repayment of bank loans EBIRTTER - (28,205)
Interest paid BFE - (261)
Payment of share issuing cost A& 10 BT AT R - (7,511)
Proceeds from issuance of shares R& R BEATPTIS RIE 23(d) - 152,950
Dividends paid to equity shareholders JEfFARRD RS

of the Company AR R AR B 23(b) (5,188) (5,188)
Contribution from non-controlling IR R E

equity holders 14 12,237 -
Net cash generated REEE SRS FE

from financing activities 7,049 111,785
Net increase in cash and RekBEEEYTFE

cash equivalents 2,468 58,647
Cash and cash equivalents M1B1EHNRER

at 1 January ReZEY 76,928 15,584
Effect of foreign exchange EREHHNTE

rate changes (13) 2,697
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31MBEMEER

at 31 December REEEY 19 79,383 76,928

The notes on pages 86 to 190 form part of these financial

statements.

N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR BT RE

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“The Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies

adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

1 EEEGHEOR

(a)

BB
HERBRERIZRE LG
NGB P ERE B R
SEA([BAHBREEA]) -
ZOBEERABERNERN
(BAMBHREEN) (BAEE
FHERD ([FAERER ] kR
B -FELREHARAUEER
(REMEHDZ BBERE MRS -
EESh - Ut F M IS RR I E EIRE
BMERZAARAR ([ BB
P 1) % AR R E A A
BRE AKEMREAZEIES
STERERBREFHINOT ©

BRGNS RM T E T
KREERT 2 BEMBRE LR -
ERENBAEERARANA
Bt IR R a8 RS AT (R AT AR
e RAREIE RGBT g Rt B -
R ARGE R ot E A = A
IR R BB AL
AMER ST RRED 2FED
RN BHERS - HEHER
EHRME—A -



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 comprise KEE
Holdings Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 28.

1

HEAEHBOR (F)

(b)

YU 0 ) B
HZEZ2012F12 8318 EFE
MiRE M REBERSERE
BAR((ARF]) REMB AR
(BRI AER]) -

BHEHUBHRREANAERER
JEE sk PR AR ELAE -

EREERENTERBYBRE
ERM BB IMARE - AIEHEK
ROERLHEE - AfF A
MW E2RSRERTZENH
B - fAETAIRER - ZF AR
AR ERBAELEBMEEE
AERERBEAAREENSEL
WEZRER  MAGERKR
EREEEEIANABREESE
AN B B BRE E A R R T 0
g - ERERAEANRZE
ftist e

BEEESHEENZSMET A
FARER - HE SFHEFTREETE
HIEHERTNBMHEETE - A
BERETeEZARAER :
ERIBERTEE A KRR AR
BRE  AEFELETNHER
AR HARERER o

BHEEEERRRE BV BRSE
EAFMER SR B ERAE

FENHE - A RMAE A HE
MR ERHR - RIEE28 5 °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR BT RE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no

evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s

net identifiable assets.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

1 BEEEHEOR (8)

(©)

B8 2 W) B i Il ik

MERAREHEIAEEZEGNE
B ERIREAEE AR —
MEBNMEREERE L
PR R EUS M - ARFHE
EHIFAEESE - FEEZEEA
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KB R BRI E B SRR
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1 (j) or () depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR BT RE

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©

(@)

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(g)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in

a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (note
1(g)ii)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of an asset. The cost
of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located, and an appropriate

proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

HEAEHBOR (F)

(©)

(d)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 20 years after the date of

completion.

- Leasehold improvement is depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives of 1 to 10 years.

- Machinery 10 years

Vehicles and other equipment 4-5 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Construction in progress (“CIP") represents property,
plant and equipment under construction and pending
installation, and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (note 1(g)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR BT RE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(e

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Cost comprises direct costs of construction during
the construction period. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the CIP is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when the asset is substantially ready for its
intended use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost, where applicable.
Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortization and impairment loss
(see note 1(g)lii)). Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is

incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
1(g)ii)).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

1 BEEEHEOR (8)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

®

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised from
the date it is available for use and its estimated useful
life is as follows:
- Software 5-10 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.

LEASED ASSETS

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR BT RE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)  LEASED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease term.

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

®

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
trade and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

trade and other receivables (continued)

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 1(g)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 1(g)(ii).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and

trade and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’'s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an operating
lease; and

- intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year

(see notes 1(g)(i) and (ii)).
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

@

INVENTORIES
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(g)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

(k)

U]

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

@

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will

vest.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(n)

(i) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained profits).

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse

in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay

the related dividends is recognised.
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEEEFHEOR (8)

(CONTINUED)
(n)  INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) (n) B (&)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BVER R EIE R IR A A TN L # B %R

movements therein, are presented separately from 2HRHINR - WA THE - A

each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are HMELEHIEEE R GEADT

offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax AL BB AEITERE AR
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company HEERENMABEASE LA

or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off HEATHBEENERT - 7

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the A L%y 51K 88 BN BRFRAE B 18 &

following additional conditions are met: f& :

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, - HBEEENER &
the Company or the Group intends either to RNAIKAEEFEIRFE
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and AR JRAKSIRZ
settle the liability simultaneously; or BEMBEZEE X

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - BEEBBEEEMEE: %
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same SEEMBERNHER—
taxation authority on either: TEHBEBL A T E R —IEE
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- the same taxable entity; or - RA—ERTEE X
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

(]

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

@

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other revenue in

profit or loss over the useful life of the assets.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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PR AR BT RE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()]

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

For the purpose of presenting these financial
statements, the Group adopted Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") as its presentation currency. The functional
currencies of the Company, KEE International (BVI)
Company Limited (“KEE International BVI"), and
KEE Zippers Corporation Limited ("KEE Zippers”) are
HK$ and the functional currencies of the subsidiaries
established in The People's Republic of China (“the
PRC") are Renminbi ("RMB").

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

()

O]

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)
The results of foreign operations are translated into

HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

RELATED PARTIES

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)  RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

O]

(®

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for the financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated

if they share a majority of these criteria.
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2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs

that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's financial

statements:

o Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

° Amendments to HKAS12, Income taxes — Deferred

tax: Recovery of underlying assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

The developments resulted in changes in accounting policy
but none of these changes in policy have a material impact
on the current or comparative periods, for the following

reasons:

2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures
to be included in the financial statements in respect of
transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety and for any continuing involvement in
transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety, irrespective of when the related transfer
transaction occurred. However, an entity need not provide
the disclosures for the comparative period in the first year
of adoption. The Group did not have any significant transfers
of financial assets in previous periods or the current period
which require disclosure in the current accounting period
under the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

Under HKAS 12 deferred tax is required to be measured
with reference to the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the entity expects to
recover the carrying amount of the asset(s) in question.
In this regard, the amendments to HKAS 12 introduced
a rebuttable presumption that the carrying amount of
investment property carried at fair value under HKAS 40,
Investment property, will be recovered through sale. This
presumption is rebutted on a property-by-property basis if
the investment property in question is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale. The
amendments to HKAS 12 do not impact the Group because

the Group does not hold any investment property.
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3

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
sale of zippers and other related products such as sliders,

tapes and other products.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers. The amount of each significant category of

revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

BEM
AEENEEEHARERHENH
REMAABES - PIMRE - HHR
EfbER o

EERBRAEPHEERMSHER
B MNFA EEEETHEINEG—
TREROKESENT

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

T T

Metal zippers B 73,738 78,816
Nylon zippers =t vk 49,103 71,689
Plastic zippers L) vk 21,064 24,384
Sliders BV 7,073 4,867
Premium items B 210 3,713
Others HAtb 6,185 6,964
157,373 190,433

No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of

the Group's turnover.

BERNZEFARSHEBBNERE
HEFH10% ©



OTHER REVENUE 4  HABBA

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Government grants BB € 707 5,335
Interest income FLEWA 2,922 1,869
3,629 7,204
During 2011, the Group received various government grants AEER 2011 FRESE MR ZIA
in form of cash subsidies from local government, including B RemE  BREAQRNESE
subsidies of HK$4,998,000 for the Company’s successful R FTA Y T B9 4,998,0007 T o £
listing on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange. During 2012, the 2012%F - AEEERKHBUNHE €
Group was awarded unconditional government grants of 707,000 7T - 1ERERARNEE L E
HK$707,000 as recognition of the Group’s contribution to KOERER BB

the development of the local economy.




{S— Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

I herwise indi d)
PR AR BT RE (RERID - AR TH)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBLHTEA)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BrBiATEFIE R (FFA) TFISIE -
(a) FINANCE cosTs (a) RHEAR
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Interest on bank borrowings RITER(BRAFA
wholly repayable within five years ~ 28{&E) 78 - 261
(b)  STAFF cosTS* (b) B TgA
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Salaries, wages and other benefits ~ T& + /KR EMEF] 50,794 47,058
Contributions to defined M) TE SR RGRIRETE)
contribution retirement plans TEH R 3,978 3,268
Equity-settled share-based g s E i
payment expenses XAHIRX
(notes 22 and 23) (M45E22 ). 23) 875 814
55,647 51,140

118



HK$46,571,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and

amortisation expenses and operating lease charges, which

amounts are also included in the respective total amounts

disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each of these

types of expenses.

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5  BBimsA (8)
(CONTINUED)
(c) OTHER ITEMS (¢) HAbWH
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Depreciation and amortisation* PrE ks
— lease prepayments (note 12) —HEBMAR(HIEE12) 339 100
— property, plant and — W - BB &
equipment (note 12) (Mg3E12) 12,620 11,672
— intangible assets (note 13) —EEE (M3E13) 830 664
Subtotal 2\5y 13,789 12,436
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B S
— audit services — FIZRRTE 1,057 1,223
— tax services — TS AR % 28 17
— other services — E AR 639 301
Subtotal NET 1,724 1,541
Impairment losses (written back)/  J{EEE (BE), K
charged on trade and Z 5 R HEMFEWFIE
other receivables (note 17) (FFEE17) (151) 1,075
Operating lease charges* KEER S ¢
— hire of plant and machinery —THFARRRE s 4,881 4,169
Net foreign exchange loss ME 5 ESi8 5 5R 186 108
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets  HEETFE & E K18 F58 686 237
Interest income FILEWA (2,922) (1,869)
Listing expenses Ealiikib-3 - 1,000
Research and development TEMERS
expenses on new products 1,638 3,242
Cost of inventories* FERA* 113,755 127,888
* Cost of inventories includes HK$47,464,000 (2011: 7 & B A& N47,464,000% 7T

(2011 4 : 46,571,000 7T )
BIRA - T8 - BHERRK
EHERZEB  ZEeBENE
FER L SCERHEE5(b) AT iR R £ 48
BRAMNBENRN -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

{3’ Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 B M AR
INCOME STATEMENT
(@) INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (a) HEEBEERNM P EBL -
REPRESENTS:
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Current tax - PRC BIEABiIE — P
corporate income tax TEMER
Provision for the year FREE 1,465 5,297
Current tax - Hong Kong BIEARRIE — B8
Profits Tax MEH
Provision for the year FNRE 764 169
Deferred tax IR IE
Origination and reversal of TR EZER
temporary differences B R HE 887 (982)
Effect on deferred tax balances HEEFEHEH1 H18
at 1 January resulting ZIRIET TR AE R
from change in tax rate Eoh% (257) 32
630 (950)
2,859 4,516




Actual tax expense

BERBIARX

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 FxABCaE AR i P 2B (A1)
INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING (b) BRI P S B B A &
PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: A i BHIR S F
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Profit before taxation SR A A e A 3,687 24,938
Notional tax on profit before FRA AR A B 2 &
taxation, calculated at the rates TiIE - IREAE
applicable to profits in the TSEHE R 55 38 FA B9 =R
jurisdiction concerned (note i) & (MDD 1,059 6,548
Effect of non-deductible expenses ARG L HO 522 1,352 1,089
Effect of non-taxable income FEERMMA R E (4) -
Effect of unused tax losses REERE AR A TIEE B
not recognised KIS & 498 105
Effect of tax concessions (note ii) MBEEMTZE (i) (962) (3,258)
Effect on deferred tax MEFEHEH1 A1
balances at 1 January resulting AT IB A SR 2
from a change in tax rate (257) 32
Tax effect of withholding tax (note i) TBFIF T2 28 (B aEiii) 1,111 -
Others HAtb 62 -

2,859 4,516
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING

PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: (CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income

tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

KEE Zippers is subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at 16.5% in 2012 and 2011. The payments
of dividends by Hong Kong companies are not

subject to any Hong Kong withholding tax.

The PRC statutory income tax rate applicable
to the Company’s subsidiaries is 25% effective

from 1 January 2008.

KEE (Zhejiang) Garment Accessories Limited
("KEE Zhejiang”), being production-oriented FIEs
with operating periods of 10 years or more, was
entitled to two-year exemption from income tax
followed by three-year 50% reduction in income
tax rate commencing from the first profit-making
year from PRC income tax perspective (“2+3 tax
holiday”). KEE Zhejiang commenced its 2+3 tax
holiday in 2008 and was subject to income tax
rate at 12.5% in 2012 (2011:12.5%).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FIESENETTE)
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING

PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iif)

(continued)

KEE (Guangdong) Garment Accessories Limited
("KEE Guangdong"”) was recognised as an
enterprise of new and high technology and
obtained the approval in June 2011 from local
tax authority to enjoy a preferential income tax
rate of 156% for the two financial years ended
31 December 2012 according to relevant
regulations for enterprise of new and high

technology in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and its relevant regulations, PRC-resident
enterprises are levied withholding income tax
at 10% on dividends to their non-PRC-resident
corporate investors for earnings accumulated
beginning on 1 January 2008. Undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax. Under the
Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement and
its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong
tax resident which is the “beneficial owner” and
holds 25% or more of the equity interest of a
PRC-resident enterprise is entitled to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5%. As at 31 December
2012, deferred tax liability recognised in this
regard was HK$1,111,000 (2011: Nil) (see note
18(b)).

6 EREWERRMMBIBL ()

(b) BB Y 3 B 453 T B R it S
wh B g R S () ¢

(if)

(iii)
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% (ER)REREER
ARI([HASER]) ERR
B R 1 2 AR AR R
B S 3T E e A B
B FASERR201146
PR 7T T 7% B P A
HZE2012F12831HIEW
B BFEETZER15% &
BEERBIE -

BEPBEEEMRERZER
HEBEGKRA  AEERDE
¥ 5t 52008F1A1H#
WETMEREIEREE
REEREZERMNRKRE -
AN 10% HTEINF - B
200841 A1 HAIEEME
DIRBFERETEME -
BEANEEEHEES
BB A R % B
REABER  ER[ER
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5% 8k A E IR AR
WERABEREERT
RO e TE A0 E 5% 4
i o 2012412 A318 -
BERIBEEELERA
1,111,000/7C(2011 « £&)
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

T

For the year ended 31 December 2012

124

HZ20125 12831 B LR
Salaries, Share-based
allowances  Retirement payment
and benefits scheme (note)
Directors’ inkind contribution NERLEE
fees Ho o 2H Bk SubTotal  BHRA Total
EEhe  REWEA HE 15 it (FizE) @it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i T r i r
Chairman IR
Xu Xipeng e 200 392 6 598 = 598
Executive directors HTES
Xu Xinan BT 200 330 6 536 - 536
Yang Shaolin B
(Resigned in April 2012) (N=Z-—FRmAHE) 50 110 1 161 (94) 67
Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert BE%
({Appointed in April 2012) (W=E-—FHREZA) 225 - - 225 2 21
Non-executive director FES
Yang Shaolin B
{Appointed in April 2012) (W=E-—FHREZA) 90 - - 90 2 92
Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert &K
(Resigned in April 2012) (W-Z-—FEMARMA) 75 - - 75 - 75
Independent non-executive B3 i1TES
directors
Lin Bin A 140 - - 140 2 142
Kong Hing Ki JTHE 120 - - 120 2 122
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy i 120 - - 120 2 122
1220 832 1 2,065 (84) 1981




7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 HHHH (4A)

(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE2ME12A3NALER
Salaries, Share-based
allowances  Retirement payment
and benefits scheme (note)
Directors' inkind  contribution IR EE
fees Ee  RE B SubTotal  BGXM Total
e REWERN  HEMEX et (Fit3E) st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
7 i i i i T
Chairman &
Xu Xipeng iaks 200 364 3 567 - 567
Executive directors BiITES
Xu Xinan e 200 307 3 510 - 510
Yang Shaolin B 200 413 3 616 9 710

Non-executive director ~ FHTESE
Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert & 300 - - 300 - 300

Independent non-executive BYFH1TES

directors
Lin Bin R 140 - - 140 - 140
Kong Hing Ki T 120 - - 120 - 120
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EBE 120 - - 120 - 120

1,280 1,084 9 2,373 9% 2,467
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7

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

Note:

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors
under the Company's share option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(m)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years

where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number

of options granted, are set out in note 22.

There were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of
the highest paid individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. There was
no arrangement under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

A (4

HZEBHEERBARREREA I EFERE
Wt 2 hatEE - ZSHARE 2 BETIBREN
F1(m) (i) AR BB A S A E RN 2N
MR 52 B BRAE  MBEZBE - B
BEEEHBELBEFEROIEETANGRS
RIHROR I RAT R S RRIEH RBEE -

AEEMBE N REN FEFR T XM
s = H A TR E A TBIE AR R E N
BARERESMAKRN RS KBEBAE - §
BEERRXRAERREAMENRE -



INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8 I

EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEGaTMALR B2RAESE
two (2011: three) are directors, whose emoluments are (20114 : 34) - BWEMNF BRI EE7
disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in FHE - SIN3E(2011F : 28 )&E
respect of the other three (2011: two) individuals are as FIMATEF BT
follows:
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Salaries and other emoluments e R H hF B 1,155 749
Discretionary bonuses BIISTEAL 38 36
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET IR 136 23
Share-based payment LARGD SR 2 10 -
1,339 808
The emoluments of the three (2011: two) individuals with 3BQOMF 2B)m=FMATHE
the highest emoluments are within the following band: B F AT EGE -
2012 2011
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T ITE 1,000,000 7T 3 2
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9

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company includes a profit of
HK$1,301,000 (2011: Loss of HK$324,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

7 2 v i gk B SR HE AN
WA )

RRrIEERREGGE RN (B
18) B 451,301,000 7% 7T 2 i ) (2011
F : 324,000 8 T2 EBE) Bt ALRR
AL IEHRERA o

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company's profit/ Pt BEEARRFNEF,(EIE)
(loss) for the year: ZEER
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Amount of consolidated profit/(loss) FFARR R T A
attributable to equity shareholders SRR EIRRE
dealt with in the Company's wm A, (E518)
financial statements 1,301 (324)
Final dividends from subsidiary FLUART A B[S FE (L
attributable to the profits of the ) ERNCIby S el -t
previous financial years, approved I (R EREHZ
and paid during the year WE X 5,500 17,000
Company's profit for the year /NS S
(note 23(a)) (P45E23(a)) 6,801 16,676

Details of dividends paid to equity shareholders of the
Company are set out in note 23(b).

BRRNFARAEEZBRZKEZ
FEIBHEAHIFE23(b) ©



10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$1,055,000
(2011: HK$20,422,000) and the weighted average of
415,000,000 ordinary shares (2011: 410,562,000) in
issue during the year.

(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares

10 A

(a)

15 B FEA 2 A
BREREF TIIRE R R G #E
7 A% B OFE (5 & F1 1,055,000 7%
70 (2011 4 : 20,422,000 7T )
TERBRZMETFTHHERFAND
#17,2415,000,0000% (20114 :
410,562,000 %) 51 & -

(i) BB T2

2012 2011
‘000 ‘000
T T
Issued ordinary shares M1 A1HBEET
at 1 January @R 415,000 -
Effect of capitalisation ERLEITHE
issue - 410,562
Weighted average number 712 A 31 HE @&
of ordinary shares Eohlit= RS aE
at 31 December 415,000 410,562
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (b) TR

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$1,055,000 (2011:
HK$20,422,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 415,023,000 shares (2011:
410,562,000), calculated as follows:

GREE AT TRBAQRER
1% B F& 1 75 F1) 1,055,000 78 7T, (2011
4 1 20,422,000 7T ) LimAk Nt
R F N 3172 415,023,000
A% (2011 4F : 410,562,0004%) 5t &40
T
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

10 HgBa@A (%)
(b) SRR ()

2012 2011
‘000 ‘000
T T
Weighted average number 712 A 31 HE#@&A
of ordinary shares at hniEEg K
31 December 415,000 410,562
Effect of deemed issue R B E IR B
of shares under the WRBEBITRMNNTE
Company'’s share option
scheme 23 -
Weighted average number 712 A 31 BE B (#58)
of ordinary shares B INHEF 1T 2R
(diluted) at 31 December 415,023 410,562
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11

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by geographical areas.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

o Southern China and overseas: this segment
manufactures zipper products and mainly sells the
products to customers in Southern China and overseas
market. Currently its activities are mainly carried out in

Guangdong province and Hong Kong.

° Eastern China: this segment manufactures zipper
products and mainly sells the products to customers in
Eastern China. Currently its activities are mainly carried

out in Zhejiang province.

° Central China: this segment manufactures zipper
products and mainly sells the products to customers in
Central China. Currently its activities are mainly carried

out in Hubei province.

11

vigi % e

AEEZMHEREER - EREA
SERREEABRNLE2RER UM
BRAMBELFRFER BT
AEECE2ERTIN=AT2HDH -
WEKLEDFFEAERATIZ2RD

B

o EmREIN: R RRENEE
o W EBEETERLEIINT
BEF HXBABEIERER
EREBET

e ER:ZOMBENBEMR I
IBHETERER  EEXBKR
£ ERANTEETT ©

4

o BERRHPRENHEES T
IEHETEARS  HEBR
B BRAL A 1T -
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11 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

()

SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results and assets attributable to each reportable

segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception
of investments in financial assets, deferred tax assets

and other corporate assets.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to

those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted profit before taxation” i.e. “turnover
less cost of sales, distribution costs, administrative
expenses and finance costs”. Items not specifically
attributed to individual segment are excluded from
the calculation of segment profit. The Group's senior
executive management is provided with segment
information concerning segment revenue, profit and
assets. Segment liabilities are not reported to the

Group’s senior executive management regularly.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

11 s (4)

(a)

Vi E3 V) Tin 3403
REHE D ERIBER D EE DA
ARME  AEESKEREAS

RIATEREES RS D AN
MEBENREE

DHEBEBEMEEE  HETA
BERE BEMBREENEM
EEEERI

ZED
pan=idnil=S

s
AZ2WD

W kX HEEET 2
MmMELHHE ZE
EHRX - RABEZFD
BEMNNESHEE =
B R Ko BT o

=
=5
il

AR E o 8 M e AR [#E
HERB AR A& RE
WIHERA ~ DA - TR
S MBERA | e sHE RS
B WA E AR EBRER 2
HMHWIEE - AREEAG
ABRHARD B ‘mﬁﬂ
BEMNDEHER - AEETE
EHW%%&%EAEzi&“*BE

& o



11 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11 AR (8

(a)  SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) (a) FiBEFBENHEE (B
Information regarding the Group's reportable DRIFEZE2012F 12 A31 1
segments as provided to the Group's most senior FEN201MFE12A31BILEFEE
executive management for the purposes of resource H & IR D B R AT 9 SRR A A
allocation and assessment of segment performance SEReEEABREBEBAASE
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 ER2WmoIBHERFHINWAT ¢

respectively is set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2012

HZ220125 128N BLLEE
Southern
China and Eastern Central
overseas China China Total
ZFREN £ Eh @zt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
Revenue from external customers R EINERF Uz 97,251 60,122 = 157,373
Inter-segment revenue D Eb 13,710 7,591 - 21,301
Reportable segment revenue AE2RD PR 110,961 67,713 = 178,674
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 7] 242 &5F]/ (EiE) 1,102 7,844 (1,521) 7,425
Interest income from bank deposits ~ $R1T7F 2 FI BULA 2,079 675 168 2,922
Depreciation and amortisation FRTEREH
for the year (8,268) (5,182) (339) (13,789)
Reportable segment assets EANTZRIBEE
at year end 158,481 123,192 71,393 353,066

Additions to non-current segment  ERDEIET
assets during the year BEMAE 17,095 1,429 19,575 38,099




{S— Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
I therwise indicated)
BB SRR MTRE (BRI - FA SR H)

11  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11 s (48)
(a)  SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) (a) FiBEFENHEE (B

Year ended 31 December 2011

BE201F 123N BLEEE
Southern
China and Eastern Central
overseas China China Total
E@ g g B @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T Fr
Revenue from external customers ~ RESNREPIE 119,939 70,494 - 190,433
Inter-segment revenue D EbEdE 18,532 11,907 - 30,439
Reportable segment revenue A2H 5 P 138471 82,401 - 220,872
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 7] 232 &%F]/ (EiE) 13,004 11,350 (351) 24,093
Interest income from bank deposits ~ $R1T7F 2 FI BULA 1,468 120 26 1,614
Interest expense MERZ - (261) - (261)
Depreciation and amortisation ERMEREH
for the year (7,705) (4,731) - (12,436)
Reportable segment assets FRNAZHEIBEE
at year end 203,326 114,313 12,240 329,879
Additions to non-current segment  ERPIPIERE EE
assets during the year FIAE 13,209 6,383 21,648 41,240
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11 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11 AR (8

(b) RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT (b) W R IBCEE ~ WA o R &
OR LOSS AND ASSETS e I IR
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
F5 T
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue A 28 EPhEs 178,674 220,872
Elimination of inter-segment R SRR S
revenue (21,301) (30,439)
Consolidated turnover (note 3) #R&% %58 (FizE3) 157,373 190,433
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
F5 T
Profit A
Reportable segment profit A 28 EPhEs 7,425 24,093
Elimination of unrealised profit D HEEEFE
of inter-segment purchase of M EEEERNARER T
inventories and fixed assets 398 571
Reportable segment profit REAEBHIAEFEN
derived from the Group’s A2 WA
external customers 7,823 24,664
Other revenue and other net loss Efbizs & b E5 18558 2,029 6,576
Unallocated head office and ROBBI REEMT
corporate expenses (6,165) (6,557)
Unallocated head office interest RO ELABIPIRITIFAZ
income from bank deposits FEUA = 255

FERBIADER
taxation 3,687

Consolidated profit before




{S’ Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
I therwise indicated)
BB SRR MTRE (BRI - FA SR H)

11  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11 233 (81)
(b)  RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT (b) RSB - A s &
OR LOSS AND ASSETS (CONTINUED) W i R (47)
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
F5 F7
Assets &=
Reportable segment assets AZ2WmoHAEE 353,066 329,879
Elimination of unrealised D BEBETER
profit of inter-segment RETHEF
purchase of inventories (1,632) (1,884)
Elimination of unrealised R EE B S E E T
profit of inter-segment BERAREIREF
purchase of fixed assets (1,011) (1,156)
350,423 326,839
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE E 2,015 1,634
Unallocated head office RoMEHREEEE
and corporate assets 341 672
Consolidated total assets mEEERAE 352,779 329,045
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12 FIXED ASSETS 12 Wi

Tue GRoOUP AR [
Vehicles
and other
equipment  Leasehold Construction Lease
Buildings ~ Machinery FER improvement inprogress  Sub-total prepayments Total

By BE  EbERf  EERE  RBIR N BEEM it
$000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000
i i i i e i i n

Cost: A

M1Januay 2011 R201ME1A1R 34,639 69,916 8483 10,730 3,651 127,419 4699 132,118
Exchange adjustments [ % 1723 3861 9 533 187 6,731 3 6,964
Additions BE 159 6,201 1770 13 8095 16,358 - 16,358
Disposals it ) (883) (217) 4 - (1,112 - (1112
Transfer from CIP BERIRER - 7,750 - - (7,750) - - -

At 31 December 2011 2011412 31 H
and 1Janary 2012 R2012F1R18 36513 86,935 10,463 11,302 4,183 149,39 4,932 154,308

Exchange adjustments  [E 3% (6) 1 1 - 53 59 9 152
Additions hE 21 8,535 09 644 19,615 29,744 29,3% 59,139
Disposals e - 2,629 (422) - - 3,051) - (3,051)
Transfer from CIP BEETREL - 2,36 289 62 (2,716) - - -

At31 December 2012 20126128318 36528 95,217 11,260 12,008 JARKSS 176,148 34420 210,568




{S— Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

. unless otherwise indicated)
Eji%ﬁﬂs—% Bﬁﬁ (FRBAHI - FrESIEAETE)
12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 12 [l ¥ (4f)
THE GROUP (CONTINUED) AR (4])
Vehicles
and other
equipment  Leasehold Construction Lease
Buildings  Machinery FER improvement inprogress  Sub-total prepayments Total

By BE  EbERf  EERE  RBIR N BEEM it
$000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000
n n i n n n n T

Accumulated i

depreciation:
At 1 January 2011 RANME1R1H (4,008) (18,006 (5,253) (1,993) - 29,280) (414) 29,694}
Exchange adjustments [ 38% (238) (989) (260) (143) - (1,630) (23) (1,663)
Charge fortheyear ~ FRXH! (1,670) (6,672) (1,372) (1,958) - (11672 (100 (11,772)
Witten back on RHERED

disposals 8 535 183 - - 726 - 726
At31 December 2011 120115128318

and 1Janary 2012 k201281818 (5,928) 25,132) (6,702) (4,004) - (41,856) (537) (42,393
Exchange adjustments [ 5% () (19 2 5) - (31) 1) (32
Charge fortheyear  FRFH] 1,746) (7,653) (1,231) (1,990) - 12,620 (339) 12,959)
Witten back on RHERED

disposals - 619 391 - - 1,010 - 1,010
At31 December 2012 120126123318 (7679 (32,185) (7,544) (6,089) - (63,497) 877) (54,374)
Carryingamount;  BREE
At31December 2012 M2012% 127318 28849 63,032 3,716 5919 113 122,661 33,543 156,194
At31 December 2011 R2011E12A318 30585 61,803 3,761 7,208 4183 107,540 4,3% 111,935
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12

FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(a)

The lease prepayments are for land use rights held on
a medium-term lease of 50 years in the PRC.

Certain lease prepayments and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$33,141,000 (2011:
HK$34,980,000) were pledged as securities for un-
utilised bank facilities of the Group as at 31 December
2012.

The Group acquired land use rights for the new
production plant set up in Hubei Province of the
PRC with cash consideration of HK$29,395,000
pursuant to the Investment Project Agreement (“the
Agreement”) entered into between one of the Group’s
subsidiary, KEE Guangdong, and Jingmen local
government. Upon the full payment of the above land
use right consideration, the Group will be entitled to a
government grant in connection with the acquisition
of land use right with an aggregate amount of
HK$16,781,000, subject to the fulfilment of the agreed
conditions as set out in the Agreement. Upon the
Group complies with the conditions attaching to the
grant in the future, the related grant will be recognised
in accordance with note 1(p)(ii).

12

I s e (4)

A4 (41)

(a) MEBEMTIARERIZL0FHEHA
EXFEM LI ERRE -

(b) H2012%12A8318 K@
{8 /433,141,000/8 7T (2011 4 -
34,980,000 7T) B E THETE
NEREFERAEBHRE AR
ITERRBEE R -

(c) AEBEM—HMBARMIER

HFIPIE MBI LR ETEB 5
F([ZmaEl) - WeEE P EH
b i AR LT EE T
- 3R e R E /29,395,000 %
JL o fF b i {E ARERERE
R AEEBRE LR+ HE
FATE 2 WPE - TEBITZ Wk P
WA EGREBERT - BEEER
[ Bh& &5 16,781,000 7T °
RNEE BETA /B & i &
B - AR B S IS IREM 1 (p)
(i) T LARERR ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 B %R
The Group
Software
AEBEETMS
$'000
T
Cost: RN
At 1 January 2011 Mm2011%F1H1H 4,901
Exchange adjustments ME 320
Additions R 3,331
At 31 December 2011 and 201112831 H
1 January 2012 201291 A18 8,552
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 5 B (1)
Additions TR 38
At 31 December 2012 201212 831 H 8,589
Accumulated amortisation: HeTEs ¢
At 1 January 2011 Mm2011%F1H1H (390)
Exchange adjustments ME (35)
Amortisation for the year FREEH (664)
At 31 December 2011 and 201112831 H
1 January 2012 X2012F1A1H (1,089)
Exchange adjustments ME 5 5B (2)
Amortisation for the year FREEH (830)
At 31 December 2012 201212 831 H (1,921)
Carrying amount: SRTEIME
At 31 December 2012 72012912 A31 H 6,668
At 31 December 2011 2011512 A31H 7,463



14 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 14 JAH)E 2w i BE 2R

The Company
P /NS
2012 2011
$°000 $'000
Fx T

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD - AR

The balance represents the Company's equity interest in
KEE International BVI, authorised and issued share capital
of which as of 31 December 2012 are USD 50,000 (ordinary
shares of 50,000 of USD 1 each) and USD 2, respectively.

Details of subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2012
are set out below:

ZEERIEAR QRN KEEREEBVIA R
AR HEE2012F12A31848
ETE KRB EITIRA S RIA50,000E 7T
(50,000 FAREE 13X THEBAR) &
2FETT .

R2012F12 A31H @ AR aIHEBA A
RFBHINNT -

Place and date of Attributable
incorporation/ Issued and fully equity interest
establishment paid up capital FE(L R 1 Principal
Name of company EZatij oA 227Xk  Direct Indirect activities
NEER AL B B AR HEBRA HiZ B FEEK
KEE The British Virgin 2 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment
International BVI Islands (“BVI") USD1 each holding
13 August 2010
7 % B BVI RBREIHES 2R ERREE 13T 100% - REER

201048 A 13 H FOREREN




{S’ Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

B H5 ¥R B = (AR FAS BB
14 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 14 B R 2 W) i 2 (A1)
(CONTINUED)
Place and date of Attributable
incorporation/ Issued and fully equity interest
establishment paid up capital FE(L R fE Principal
Name of company MR B21TX  Direct Indirect activities
NEEBRE BRIz B R B HA BERA B BE FEER
KEE Zippers Hong Kong 1,000,000 - 100%  Trading of
1 March 2002 ordinary shares Zipper
of HK$1 each products
i 2 g B 1,000,000 % - 100% EBENEERD
200243 A1 H BREE 1T
oR=S 5]l
KEE Guangdong The PRC HK$137,500,000 - 100%  Manufacture
21 March 2005 and sale of
zipper
products
FZER a3 137,500,000 7 7T - 100% HEKIHEE
200543 21 H I BEE o
KEE Zhejiang The PRC uSD8,760,000 - 100%  Manufacture
9 September 2005 and sale of
Zipper
products
R NP $ 8,760,000 % 7T - 100% HEIHEE
200549 A9H PGB
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14 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

15

(CONTINUED)

14 AR E 2 B W RR (B1)

Place and date of Attributable
incorporation/ Issued and fully equity interest
establishment paid up capital FE(L R fE Principal

Name of company MR B21TX  Direct Indirect activities

NCIECE R 26T B AR HMERA HEE B EEK

Foshan UNA The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Design and

Cultural Giffs 10 June 2009 sale of
Co., Limited garment
accessories

BT EA L e AR 3,000,000 7T - 100% @ REFMEEE

BRBERAT 200946 A10H AR EE AL (4
KEE (Jingmen) The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 80% Manufacture
Garment Accessories 23 September 2011 (note i) and sale of
Limited Zipper
("KEE Jingmen”) products

75 (FIF9) BRI B e AR# 50,000,000 7T - 80% AEKHEE
BRAT] 201149 A23H (MHsxi)  HsEEmSR
(ITFAS#FIFL)

Note (i)  KEE Jingmen was established in Jingmen, Hubei Province in MG MEAMBEMAZEREEARK
September 2011 by KEE Guangdong with capital contribution 10,000,0007C © 7201149 A 1
of RMB10,000,000. The paid-up capital of KEE Jingmen b & FPIT AL - 201269 A -
was increased to RMB50,000,000 after additional capital ASERKR RIS AR D BIFEN
injection of RMB30,000,000 and RMB10,000,000 (equivalent JEE AR %30,000,0007T kAR
to HK$12,237,000) by KEE Guangdong and an external party 10,000,000 ( 48 & # 12,237,000 %
respectively in September 2012. TL) & - RS HPINSRRAIE NE

AR 50,000,000 7T °

PREPAYMENTS FOR FIXED ASSETS 15 BB 5 67 B LA kR

The balance as at 31 December 2012 represents the

prepayments for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

The balance as at 31 December 2011 mainly represents the

initial lease prepayments for land use right of a parcel of land

in Hubei Province.

PR2012F 12 A31 B2 & REEY
¥ BEERREIHRNNEMNZE-
M2011F12 A31 B2 Esh T 25t

Bt d — b+ 2 LI AR
NEVEHEENRK -




{S— Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

I herwise indi d)
B RS ERAR BT RE (RERID - AR TH)

16 INVENTORIES 16 1
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Raw materials AR 3,918 4,249
Work in progress TR 10,426 15,740
Finished goods B 2,120 3,006
16,464 22,995
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRAERITREASRZRAERNT
expense and included in the consolidated income statement EeBmOWOT
is as follows:
The Group
TEE
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREEB 112,853 126,401
Write down of inventories MoREE 902 1,487
113,755 127,888
The write-down of inventories is related to decrease in GEMRBRITHERE TRAERIEFTEY
the estimated net realisable value of certain slow-moving 5T AT B3R AR D FTER ©
inventories.
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 S50 B 30 i e Ok
The Group The Company
rEE AT

2012 2011 2012 2011

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

SF Fir Fr T

Trade debtors FEUBRIE 35,366 36,764 - -

Less: allowance for doubtful B REREE

debts (note 17 (b)) (BIEE17 (b)) (164) (715) - -

35,202 36,049 - -

Other prepayments H M IERFRIE 2,832 2,668 - -

Advance to a third party JENE = HFE 8,571 - = -

Deposits and other debtors RE R HAth fE YRR 1,564 2,269 328 270
Less: allowance for doubtful B B At EINGRIR

debts of other debtors L RIEIREHE - (193) - -

48,169 40,793 328 270

All of the trade and other receivables (including amounts
due from subsidiaries) are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
has provided interest free advance of RMB6,950,000
(equivalent to HK$8,571,000) to a state-owned enterprise
responsible for investment projects on behalf of Jingmen
local government.

PRA R E 5 K H A B UGRIE (B HE R W
MEABFIE) - BAHE —FRKKE

B E20126F12A831BEFE - K
EERRRAMEDRNEERER
ENBEAECEREREBRARK
6,950,0007T (1E55 78,571,000/ 7T) °
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

()

AGEING ANALYSIS
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade debtors based on the invoice date and

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREETHIN - FTESENETTHE)

17 B8 B I M Bk o (4

(a) WREHT
HERREREER  RIEBRE
BN B RERBENE 5 UG

net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: EWRR DT -
The Group
TEE

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Within 1 month 1EAR 11,624 14,531
1 to 2 months 1-21E A 12,192 10,534
2 to 3 months 2-3 & A 4,762 6,880
Over 3 months iBi@ 3 & A 6,624 4,104
35,202 36,049

Trade debtors are in general due within 30-90 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group's

credit policy are set out in note 24(a).

JEUBRITE M B N E A HEET 30 £ 90
AARH BEASEEEERERNE
— SR IBER KT 24(a) ©



17

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE DEBTORS

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade debtors directly (see note 1(g)(i)).

17 B8 B I M Bk o (4

(b)

MR e

IR Mo B TR 0 Ok LS $E R A B R
AW BRIEASRER R B FOR K
SEW - ERBERT - BEEE
15 B4 1 e Mk PR TR M 3 7 2 B Y
# 1a)(i) ©

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FARBRBEZSHOT :
during the year is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fx T
At 1 January Bm1A1HE 715 106
Exchange adjustments Rk (3) 19
Impairment loss (written ERERRE (25) k58
back)/recognised (151) 882
Uncollectible amounts i sE AT IR 2 58
written off (397) (292)
At 31 December M®12A31H 164 715

At 31 December 2012, the Group's trade debtors of
HK$164,000 (2011: HK$715,000) respectively were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that the receivables are not probable to
be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts were recognised in full. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

72012412 A318 » REBEIE
16164,0007%71.(2011 : 715,000 7T )
EEAMERRE-  BRERKRIEAEE
EMERUBRENTPAH - BE
BREE - BAIZEEWFIET KT
BElE - At E2HERFERE
B NEBUWARRZEERITEL

[EEES ik




{S’ Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

I herwise indi d)
PR AR BT RE (RERID - AR TH)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 5% e L b ME Ok O (4
(CONTINUED)
(c) TRADE DEBTORS THAT ARE NOT IMPAIRED (c) A DAL B e 3
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither BEFE MR R IR IE 2R AR AR ER
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired FEWE SFIBMRR ST ¢

are as follows:

The Group
AEE
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Neither past due nor impaired BARBHEATARRE 18,202 21,869
Less than 3 months past due BmEN 2 316 A 15,985 12,313
More than 3 months but less #61 BAR 15 3 {E A
than 12 months past due BAZ12MEA 988 1,867
More than 12 months past due  #HAiB:B 12 & A 27 -
Amount past due mAEEE 17,000 14,180
35,202 36,049
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired BiR@ B AR ENERRIBERERZ
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there WEA R FEHENEFERA -
was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B # H{B AR R (8 A JE U SR8 B % 2 8
to a number of independent customers that have VEFPAER ZEEPRAKSENE
a good track record with the Group. Based on past Bk R g - BREBELR ARG
experience, management believes that no impairment BEZUWEEALH  BEBRDER
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as AuEEWE - WEREREEAR
there has not been a significant change in credit quality It AR E LR ERE -

and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 A WA B R UL 9 4 o 74 B
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) CURRENT TAX PAYABLE/(RECOVERABLE) IN THE CONSOLIDATED (a) &AW B R B R W B
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION REPRESENTS: £+, (o el ) BERH -
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January m1HA1H (293) 1,705
Exchange adjustments I H (2) 55
Provision for PRC corporate FP R R FTS BB (FTE6(a))

income tax (note 6(a)) 1,465 5,297
Provision for Hong Kong BHAT G EE (HiE6)

Profits Tax (note 6(a)) 764 169
Income tax paid BRFEH (794) (7,519)
At 31 December M®12A31H 1,140 (293)
Represented by: &

The Group
rEEH
2012 2011
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Current tax payable BNERFE (S R 18 2,494 2,004
Current tax recoverable RNEART Y B 7518 (1,354) (2,297)

1,140 (293)




{S’ Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

I herwise indi d)
PR AR BT RE (RERID - AR TH)

18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 SR BN DL Wy i3 B

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)

(CONTINUED)

(b) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RECOGNISED: (b) UCHBBERMEER (Af) :
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE AN & P ERART
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MIBEE/(BE)HEKRSBD LT
position and the movements during the year are as NEEBINT :
follows:

Unrealised
profit
arising from
intra-group PRC dividend
transactions withholding tax
elimination (note 6(h)(iii))
SERRA HERE
Depreciation ~ E£MKER Provisions B Total
e K | B (HaE6(b)(ii) ast
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000

Thr Thr Thr TR TR

Deferred tax arising from: ~ EEFHIERE :

At 1 January 2011 RONME1R1H - 452 104 - 556
Exchange adjustments EiEE 9 - 19 - 28
Credited/(charged) to PSRN/ (1)

income statement 3% (40) 5% - 950
At31 December 2011and  H2011E12 831 B R

1 January 2012 20121818 406 112 Ul - 1,534
Charged/(credited) to RRERTA/ (H10)

income statement 21) 249 253 (1111 (630)
At 31 December 2012 K2012612 7318 384 661 970 (1,111) 904
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 A WA B R UL 9 4 o 74 B

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)
(CONTINUED)
(¢) RECONCILIATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (c) HERMBRIBFHIE

FINANCIAL POSITION:

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
$’000 $'000
Fx T
Net deferred tax asset ERE BRI R R
recognised in the ZIBETRIREERE
consolidated statement
of financial position 2,015 1,634
Net deferred tax liability RERE AR SRR IER 2
recognised in the BIERIE A EFE
consolidated statement
of financial position (1,111) -
904 1,634
(d) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED (d) AW i B W B I %
In accordance with the accounting policy at out in note BESHTBEMENN)  &~NE
1(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets B AERLEZERWEIE
in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$2,412,000 2,412,000 7t (2011 : 420,000
(2011: HK$420,000) as it is not probable that future BIC) AR KA RE R HE T
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised T HE BN B B8 72 A2 R SR FE AR T A
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and FLARIR EiE 18 - IRIBIRITR
entity. The tax losses expire in 5 years under current E o TR EB AR S FR|E] o

tax legislation.
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PR AR BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 53 WK Bt 3 3 1 o 74 B
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#%)
(CONTINUED)

(e) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

At 31 December 2012, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries amounted to HK$63,508,000 (2011:
HK$61,719,000). Deferred tax liabilities relating to
portion of these temporary differences amounting
to HK$2,064,000 (2011: HK$3,086,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in the

foreseeable future.

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(e) ARHERMIELBIHEEAAN -
M2012412 A318 - B@AE
E P BB A B R 2K A A
fF 2 £ 563,508,000 7% 7T (2011
F :61,719,0007870) - BEE
HEREERESENREEHIES
f& 42,064,000 7t (20114 :
3,086,000/ 7T) - AR AAAZE
FIZEMBRARMNRKRERE - B
ZERFERABTERNA R iGHR
Dk B EERE SRS
REB&FREENEATIEG A
HIRERIEA M o

19 BERBE5EY

The Group The Company
AEE KA F]
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Frx T
Deposits with banks HRITEHTFR 93,933 86,104 = -
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFRRE 27,770 34,373 15 403
121,703 120,477 15 403
Less: Bank deposits with B BIEIRA=@A
maturity beyond VAE ZSR1T1F R
three months (42,320) (43,549) - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 79,383 76,928 15 403




19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19

20

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2012, cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of HK$79,184,000 (2011: HK$74,524,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is

subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC

B4 B B4 8 (80)

72012412 A31H » ©£%8/479,184,000
7T (2011 4 : 74,524,000 70) IR &
MRS EEYTIAAREE - WK H
BEBBERFRNRTE - AREWIE
AEBEIBRNEE  HPREELESA
Z R BIBUTEIIMNEE i ©

government.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 BB B Ml HE A K OH
The Group The Company
rEE NSS!
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx T ST T
Trade creditors FETBRIA 7,506 7,444 = -
Payroll and staff benefits JENTEREIREN
payable 7,433 6,133 - -
Accrued expenses FERTRA S 3,454 3,492 639 625
Payables for fixed assets BT & EREMNFIE 4,823 1,318 = -
Other taxes payable Efth e TRIE 954 1,644 = -
Advanced from a third party FEZFER 8,633 - = -
Other payables Ho e ERIE 691 141 = -
33,494 20,172 639 625

All of the trade and other payable are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on

demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has
received interest-free advance of HK$8,633,000 from a
state-owned enterprise responsible for investment projects

on behalf of Jingmen local government.

FEME S REAMENKIE - Bt —
FARBENBREFEERERRBA -

HZE2012F 12 A31HIEFE » K&
BEERERAMENBENFEEREEE
rIEL A 1 % U % B #4530 8,633,000 78

JT °©




{3’ Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

I herwise indi d)
PR AR BT RE (RERID - AR TH)

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 S5 RICALMERS K (1)
(CONTINUED)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis HEAREHER  BRIBFFHEAH -
of trade creditors (which are included in trade and other RNEZFA(CBEESREMEN
payable), based on the invoice date, is as follows: FIE) WIEREC DT - W0 E
The Group
AEHE

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

T T
Within 1 month 1EAR 5,772 6,517
Over 1 month but within 3 months HiB1EAEZ3EAR 1,337 471
Over 3 months but within 6 months ~ #B@3EAB=6EAR 351 367
Over 6 months but within 1 year HBAeEARENFR 46 89

7,506 7,444

21 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS 21 R Bk R A

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme NEEREE SRS M AT S 2
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory BlASELSEREFHSENTERR
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees HEIEES DT —EREEAES S
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong 2l([emiEssta ) - wiEdstas—
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined ERB T ASE R T H-EORK
contribution retirement plan administered by independent B BIEBRBELHE BEXIREE
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its B2 EERESHBIWAR5%MAT
employees are each required to make contributions to the ) LA AU A 25,0005 T4
plan at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to a FRR(A20125F6 B8R FRAEK
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 20,000 7T) o

prior to June 2012).
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21

22

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement scheme. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the scheme at
rate of 10%-14% of the eligible employees’ basic salary.
The local government authority is responsible for the entire

pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment
of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions as

described above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

(a) THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN
On 27 May 2011, the Company granted 24,880,000
share options under its share option scheme to one
executive director and eighty three eligible employees
of the Group (including four key management
personnel) for subscribing shares of the Company at
an exercise price of HK$1.39 per share. The exercise
of these share options would entitle the director to
subscribe for an aggregate of 2,120,000 shares of
the Company while the eligible employees for an
aggregate of 22,760,000 shares. Each option granted
under the share option scheme has a vesting period
of one to five years, commencing from the day of
announcement of the 2011 annual results. The options

are exercisable until 2017.

21

22

D ELB A A (40)

REEFENBRAREENERER
RRETEIHKE - REIME R RIZAR
FTEMES  RABEREEEAT S
10% Z=14% 58 o & HBUT IR IKE
B EEARKSELASE -

B bt s RN ARBEY EARE
AR EN MR ERELE

2 45 LBy S A W 22 5

(a) 2011 4F M BeRE st
R2011F5 278 » ARRIRIE
BRETE A EE —EITE
FER8IEEEREE (BIE4LE
FEEE AE) 24,880,000
MERE - NIRRT 1.39%8 T
WITEBREERRRRG - 17
FTZEEREKSZETAE
4 HRE A AR 2,120,000 B &
- MEEREBRAIRESH
22,760,000 &g 1n o WRIR e
ERENEOBRESAR
ELFMITHERN - B2011F
FEEERNEZ B - BIRE
AIHA 2017 SFRIFTHE -
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(@)

THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)

(B A=A

FASRENETAE)

22 HEZRAN IR AN ST A B (4)

(2)
@

2011 450 e Hi ) (480)

T HE 1 1 sk R 1 A

7

Number of share options granted

RimEREHE
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Director Employees Total  Contractual life
RS iR 54A £ k8 ait G
27-May-11 Tranche 1: the day the the day the 2016 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6 years
2011 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WIESATE B8 WNFEREELGZE  2016EEFEELAZE 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6%
21-May-11 Tranche 2: the day the the day the 2016 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6 years
2012 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WNESANE  F28: WNEFERELBLA  WOFFERELHZE 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6%
27-May-11 Tranche 3: the day the the day the 2016 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6 years
2013 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WIESATE  E34: WRIFEREELGZE  06EEFEERAZE 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6%
21-May-11 Tranche 4: the day the the day the 2016 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6 years
2014 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WNESANE  F48: WUEFERELBZA  6FFERELHZE 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6%
27-May-11 Tranche 5: the day the the day the 2016 636,000 6,828,000 7,464,000 6 years
2015 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WIESA27E  E58: WINFEREELGZE  016FEFEELAZE 636,000 6,828,000 7,464,000 6%
2,120,000 22,760,000 24,880,000
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 HERRAS SRy AT ) (HH)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)  THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED) (a) 2011 4% JBe B w13 (4%)
(ii)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of (ii) JEREZ % H R NEF
share options are as follows: TIEsmr -
2012 2011
Exercise ~ Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
‘000 '000
THEE BREZA THEE BREZE
T T
Outstanding at the beginning A A1T1E
of the year $1.39 18,360 - -
Granted during the year FRERD - - $1.39 24,880
Lapsed during the year FREAB (M)
(note 1) $1.39 (5,040) $1.39 (6,520)
Outstanding at the end RELHRITE
of the year (note 2) (M3E2) $1.39 13,320 $1.39 18,360
Exercisable at the end RER T

of the year $1.39 1,998 $1.39 -
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows (continued):

Notes:

1 For the year ended 31 December 2012, 5,040,000
share options were lapsed as certain directors and
employees ceased to be directors and employees of

the Group.

2 The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had
an exercise price of HK$1.39 and a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 4.3 years (2011: 5.3 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return
for the share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimated fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial
lattice model. The contractual life of the share
options is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated

into the binomial lattice model.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

22 HEZRAN IR AN ST A B (4)

(a) 2011 4E MR BeHE sl (%)

(i1)

(iii)

S I 2 B R ) T
THEFENT (3) -
GEE

1 HZE2012F12A3181E
FE BARETESERE
EETHBRALSENES
E & 8 - B 115,040,000
DEBRIER &R o

2 2012612 A31 B2 4
RITERBREZITEER
1.39/87T « MEFH T
A K 8 B43F (2011 ¢
5.3%F) °

JHREHEL T R AR
KBRS RS
MARBEDZ2ERLNE
BREOAAERE - BR
BOEFARENERS
EAHERAGE - BK
RS WHRAEZEN
M ABUR - Z —RAH
EEACFTRERAYRESR
TEHREE -



22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(iti) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued):

Fair value (weighted average)
per share option at
measurement date

Share price

Exercise price per option

Expected volatility rate

Expected dividend yield

In-service early exercise
behaviour

Option life (expressed as
weighted average life
used in the modelling
under binomial
lattice model)

Risk-free rate of interest
Tranche 1:
Tranche 2:
Tranche 3:
Tranche 4:
Tranche 5:

HK$0.46

HK$1.28
HK$1.39

50% per annum

2% per annum

Option holder will
exercise his/her
options when the
share price is at
least 250% of the

exercise price.

4.91 years

1.00% per annum
1.22% per annum
1.40% per annum
1.54% per annum

1.65% per annum

22 HERRAN SR A AT B By ()

(a) 2011 4F W BORE w2 (48)

(iii)

BB I 2
EHt
F24t
B34t
Falt
ot

JERRELN T (E RAR % (F) -

g u=g=}-!
BipRERAE
O IER @Il
B8 0.4678TT

B AD (B 1.2877T

BiERE
FT{E(E 1.397%7T

TBEHEB®E  BF50%

BB B NS BF2%

IRISEANIRE REARIE
T{EEE) BEAR

pall}

fRE= D
RATEE
#9250%
P TR HE
REARAE -
BT

(B#®,—E=

B R

HHhERD

T4

BR ) 4915

TF1.00%
BF1.22%
TF1.40%
BFF1.54%
TF1.65%
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(iti) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued):
The expected volatility is based on the
Company’s own volatility since its listing and

comparable companies’ volatility in recent years.

Taking into account the probability of early
exercise behaviour stated above, the expected
term of the grant was determined to be around 5

years.

The risk-free rate of interest with expected
term shown above was taken to be the linearly
interpolated vyields of the Hong Kong Exchange

Fund Notes as at the grant date.

Except for the conditions mentioned above,
there were no other market conditions and
service conditions associated with the share

options.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

22 HEZRAN IR AN ST A B (4)

(a) 2011 4E MR BeHE sl (%)

(iii)

JEREHELS T (H RAR A (A1) -

AR HERALT G
B E TSR b R
ERAELBATZED
o

FHR BRI RIABH
ATREME - R TRHIEARR
HERKBE -

b R 98 B R ) 4
THELTY VSR
ERHNELS AR BILE
il -

B b 2 5 M g
B 4 4R B 0 R % R 7
el o



22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN

On 7 December 2012, the Company granted
24,600,000 share options under its share option
scheme to five directors and sixty six eligible
employees of the Group (including four key
management personnel) for subscribing shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.60 per share.
The exercise of these share options would entitle the
directors to subscribe for an aggregate of 1,900,000
shares of the Company while the eligible employees
for an aggregate of 22,700,000 shares. Each option
granted under the share option scheme has a vesting
period of one to five years, commencing from the
day of announcement of the 2012 annual results. The

options are exercisable until 2018.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

22 HEZRAN IR AN ST A B (4)

(b)

2012 45 I BB T )
M2012912 78 RAAGIRE
BREGTENAERARESTR
BeRAERER(BIEIZEEE
2 A 8)#H 24,600,000 15 i I
1 AR 0.60 B THITTEEE
REBARRMRAD o ITEZZER
ERTHESARSHRBEERD
7]1,900,000 & fx fn - m& &1
{E 8 Ar] 32884 22,700,000 %
i o RIBERESESELNE
BRI EB1 EFNTES
HFH G B20120FERERAEY
HEERT o BEARIERI 20184 RITT
i ©

(1) HE IR 09 1 B KR 1F

o
Number of share options granted
RimEREHE
Date granted Vesting Date Expiry Date Directors Employees Total  Contractual life
RS TR 38R g= &8 ait G
7-Dec-12 Tranche 1: the day the the day the 2017 1,900,000 3,405,000 5,305,000 6 years
2012 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
W2E12R78  EM 0NFEREELGZE  007EEFEERAZE 1,900,000 3,406,000 5,305,000 6%
7-Dec-12 Tranche 2: the day the the day the 2017 - 3,405,000 3,405,000 6 years
2013 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
N2E12ATE R4 NRFERRELBZA  WITEERREAMAZA - 3,405,000 3,405,000 6%
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)
@
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

22 HEZRAN IR AN ST A B (4)

THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED) (b) 2012 4 JBe B w13l (%)
The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows (i) JEREAIIEARAF T
(continued): (%) :
Number of share options granted
RimEREHE
Date granted Vesting Date Expiry Date Directors Employees Total  Contractual life
RS fTER 54A £ k8 ait G
7-Dec-12 Tranche 3: the day the the day the 2017 - 4,540,000 4,540,000 6 years
2014 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WENATE  E3M: NUFFERELMGZE  07EFERERGZA - 4,540,000 4,540,000 6%
7-Dec-12 Tranche 4: the day the the day the 2017 - 4,540,000 4,540,000 6 years
2015 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
N2ENATE F4b: WEFERRELBZA  WIEEEREAMZA - 4,540,000 4,540,000 6%
7-Dec-12 Tranche 5: the day the the day the 2017 - 6,810,000 6,810,000 6 years
2016 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
W2E12A78  F5H GFFERRELMGZAE  WEFERELAZA - 6,810,000 6,810,000 6%
1,900,000 22,700,000 24,600,000




22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of

(iti)

22 HEZRAN IR AN ST A B (4)

(b) 2012 4F W BORE w2 (48)
(i) FEIRFEZ B H R T2

share options are as follows: TIEsmr -
Number of
Exercise price options
TEE BREHE
‘000
:F
Outstanding at the REVEARITE
beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year FRERE $0.60 24,600
Outstanding at the end RERHARITE
of the year $0.60 24,600
Exercisable at the end RER] F1TE
of the year $0.60 -

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012
had an exercise price of HK$0.60 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 5.2 years.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return
for the share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimated fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial
lattice model. The contractual life of the share
options is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated
into the binomial lattice model.

(iii)

72012612 A318 2 i
RITFEBEREZTEER
0.607 7T + MNHE F 15 F &4
BHEHAB2F -

RIRBEL R AR

XY B BORE PR 1S B IR 7%
MAREBEIN2ERKOE
BENDAEE - BR
BB ARETER S
EAMERAE - BRK
BNEHHRAEZEN
B ABUR - 2 B
EEADF REHHRES
TTEREE -
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I herwise indi d)
B RS R BT RE (RER - 7SR )

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 BERRAS SR AR B (M)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b)  THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED) (b) 2012 4 BB 1 (4)
(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions (iii) MR FE N H R R &

(continued): (#) -

Fair value (weighted average) REtER BRSO BERED
per share option at ANARE(NEFHEE)
measurement date
- Directors HK$0.226 —FF 0.226 7T
- Employees HK$0.212 —EE 0.2127% 7T

Share price HK$0.60 AR 0 (B 1% 0.60/87T

Exercise price per option HK$0.60 TR E

1T1E(E 0.60/&7T

Expected volatility rate 50% per annum TEERREIR  EF50%

Expected dividend yield 2% per annum TEER B E BF2%

In-service early exercise Option holder will RIGEHANIRE MBARER
behaviour exercise his/her TEEE BAR

options when the REZD
share price is at RITEME
least 250% of the 9250%
exercise price. RTEE
BNk iE

Option life (expressed as i 1% e F B
weighted average (BB =18
life used in the B
modelling under FTEFRER
binomial lattice model) 4.37 years BN

FHRR) 437F

Risk-free rate of interest f [ f F) 2E
- Directors 0.25% per annum —EF BFF0.25%
- Employees —EE

Tranche 1: 0.16% per annum 18 HF0.16%
Tranche 2: 0.20% per annum E24t: BF020%
Tranche 3: 0.23% per annum #3338 HF0.23%
Tranche 4: 0.26% per annum E44t: BF026%
Tranche 5: 0.27% per annum F58 . BF0.27%
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

22 HESRAS SR A ST B By ()

The expected volatility is based on the
Company’s own volatility since its listing and

comparable companies’ volatility in recent years.

Taking into account the probability of early
exercise behaviour stated above, the expected
term of the grant was determined to be around 4

years.

The risk-free rate of interest with expected
term shown above was taken to be the linearly
interpolated yields of the Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Notes as at the grant date.

Except for the conditions mentioned above,
there were no other market conditions and
service conditions associated with the share

options.

(b)  THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED) (b) 2012 B RERTH (&)
(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions (iii) WK HE L R R %
(continued): (#) -

BHRBIERARATEE LT
PAZR R B 1 B S 2R AT & LR
RAZ KB

R LAt iR R IT IR B A AT BE
M REMEHSMREE RO
F o

b B T T R R 0 B 2
BRBNEL A BESNERS
BRI R s o

B LAt iz oh - B B R A
HRRR RS R AR A IR A
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 B~ Gl BB R
(a) MOVEMENTS IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY (a) HERWBHZEH
The reconciliation between the opening and REEFaRERESHBNENRE
closing balances of each component of the Group's BRIt 2 RN EERE
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated o AR BB AR NN EFE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes L FREE 2 SEBE M T

in the Company's individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company RKAF
(Accumulated
losses)/
Retained
Share Share Capital earnings
capital  premium reserve (ZFER)/ Total
KA RIPEE BRGE RE A Ech
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr i Fr Fr Fr
Balance at 1 January 2011 201 E1 A1 BRER - - - (11,326) (11,326)
Profit for the year ERgh - - - 16,676 16,676
Issuance of shares by share offer BRRNEEETRA 4,150 138,096 - - 142,246
Dividends declared and paid ERRENRE - - - (5,188) (5,188)
Equity settled share-based IEREERAZ A
transactions N25 - - 814 - 814
Balance at 31 December 2011 R201E12A318
and 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A1 ARER 4150 138,096 814 162 143,222
Profit for the year ERgh| - - - 6,801 6,801
Dividends declared and paid BRREARE - - - (5,188) (5,188)
Equity settled share-based IEREERNZA
transactions N5 - - 875 - 875
Share options lapsed R BERERL]
during the year - - (60) 60 -
Balance at 31 December 2012 R2012612A318 4,150 138,096 1629 1,835 145,710
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BAR - Gt OB (8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) DiviDENDS () BA

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the year:

HIRLE.

N FARRR SR REEFR

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Interim dividend declared BIRRIET 2011 2
and paid of HK1.25 FEAR BB R R
cents per ordinary share 1.25 781
attributable to the year 2011 - 5,188
Final dividend proposed after & HE SR AL 2
the end of the reporting Pl R AR AR B
period of HK2 cents (2011 4 = 1.255%4l)
per ordinary share
(2011: HK1.25 cents) 8,300 5,188
8,300 10,376

The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2012 720124912 A 31 B& 2 #R AR AR S

has not been recognised as a liability as at the end of WHRRERKERREE -

reporting period.
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the JEAS T AN B R AR R R £ —E B
BFEERFERZ RS E

Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

2012 2011
$'000 $000
Tr T

b — A BREENER
i R 2 RIS B
(1.257(1)(2011 « &)

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year,
approved and paid during
the year, of HK1.25 cents

per share (2011: nil) 5,188
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)
(¢)  SHARE CAPITAL (c) JBA&
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) EREFETIRE
2012 2011
No. of Share No. of Share
shares capital shares capital
RIEE R REA AR
‘000 $'000 '000 $'000
F 5 F 7
Authorised, EE,
Ordinary shares of BREE0.01ET
HK$0.01 each V& AR 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued ~ ZBR » BT
and fully paid: RER:
At 1 January 1TH18 415,000 4,150 - -
Shares issued by share offer BB B E LI THR - = 415,000 4,150
At 31 December 12A31H 415,000 4,150 415,000 4,150

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAFEBEI - FESBEABTE)

23 HAR - il BB R (4




23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(©

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

@

(i)

Authorised and issued share capital (continued)

The shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 12 January 2011, with a total
number of 400,000,000 shares, among which
100,000,000 shares (25% of the total number
of shares of the Company) were issued to the
public. The gross proceeds received from the
offering were approximately HK$133,000,000.
The Company subsequently over-allotted and
issued 15,000,000 shares to the public on 28
January 2011 and gross proceeds received were
approximately HK$19,950,000.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Group’s residual

assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme

No options were exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. Further
details of these options are set out in note 22 to

financial statements.

23 HAR - il BB R (4

(©)

JBeAs (#)

@

(i1)

EE R O BFITIRA (4)

K oAl & K201 F
TH12B R & BB R A
FRET BRDEEAR
400,000,0000% + H
100,000,000 % A% 7 ( 14
KRB B E K 25%)
BERARET - BHEAE
ARBEMEHRIBLTELY
/133,000,000/8 T > A
7~ A E % R2011F1 A
28 B~ RBREIRL % K& 3
715,000,000 B B 15+ &
W) BT 1S SIB B B
19,950,000 7 7T °

BB TAE AR ERE
TRERORE - WAE
RRELEEER-—FEN
KRERE - LAK BRI
BEMS  MAEARE
BRI -

R 15 il IR FE T 3 T EE AT 2
Vsl

BE20129F 2011412A4
31T HIEFE W E|ITEER
e BRABREZE—F
FIEHNP B REM T 22
ﬁq °
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

SHARE PREMIUM

The excess of the issued price of HK$152,950,000
(HK$1.33 per share) net of any issuance expenses of
HK$10,704,000 over the par value of the shares issued
has been credited to the share premium account of the

Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

According to the Company’'s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or
account which can be authorised for this purpose with

the sanction of an ordinary resolution.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

23 HAR - il BB R (4

(d)

JBe 4 ¥k
% 17 {8152,950,0007% JT(
fR1.33%8 L) MR BETH X
10,704,000 A& #8 2 B 31T
NEENSHEDTARQBRG
mERR o

RIEFMSHERRNE (KERT)
Bty s ERR A 0 BT AR AR
R HERBEEEZZNKREZA
% ARRIHAENN BT ER
BIZPERDEER

R DB 2 A E TR K40 N A
A AR RAKEBRESERT
% AR R ERSEME
b E 2 IR B TR KIS °



23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

STATUTORY RESERVE

Statutory reserve was established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC. Transfers to the reserve were
approved by the respective board of directors.

KEE Guangdong and KEE Zhejiang, which are wholly
foreign owned enterprises incorporated in the PRC,
are required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit
(after offsetting prior year's losses), as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to
statutory general reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital under the
PRC Company Law and the articles of association of
these entities. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of dividends to the equity
shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years' losses, if any, and may be converted into
paid-up capital provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered

capital.

23 HAR - il BB R (4

()

o 5 G

ETE R IR P BR A KRR
1A B FE A B RE AR SZ B9 AR A ]
MEARAMEIZMARY -
BREEHERAEESSIE -

RZERMAZINTAESEE
MARZEIMBE DS - ARE
HBEFENBRRKEELLT
(REBEFEESTRULBROFE)
MED10% BEE —REE R
# BEERBEESERBETER
AERZEERMNEMERMA
REHFTMERE 0% - EEE
ZRABARMERRIR D IREE
ATAETT °

EE—REGBTRERRBRAESF
EREE(WE) T ERAR
BRA - METEBERENLE
BB DR E AR 25% ©
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

®

(€3]

(h)

CAPITAL RESERVE

Capital reserve comprises the following:

- reserves arising prior to and during the
reorganisation of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2010;

- the portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to employees
of the directors and employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(m)(ii); and

- changes in equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company arising from
contribution from non-controlling interests for

acquisition of interests in a PRC subsidiary.

EXCHANGE RESERVE

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries with functional currencies
other than HK$. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q).

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to the equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$139,931,000
(2011: HK$138,258,000).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

23 HAR - il BB R (4

®

(2)

(h)

RE At Al
ERFHBEEEATESD

- EBEHEMERAEER-FT—

TEt-A=t-AL%F
EEEMMEE G

- BTFPRrRREZEREEZ

AT I IR HE 2 % 11 L 2
D50 R IR BB A 9 3R
0@ 5 EOR (LK
1m) (1) T F A TR A 2B
5 R

- EBAREFERERK

RIBEWE —HTEMNE
NEINY = S NNEIE £
RELEDES -

W 6, ik

N R EEEREERETIA
SNV T BE VP B & R IS 1R
RELMBINEZR - ZiHR
TyIRIEMIFE 1 (q) REAO R AT BUR
BRI

it 415 08 Y 3% 23 UR bk
M2012F12A318 7] £t 5
ETPARAFIERRENFEER
% /139,931,000 7t (2011 :
138,258,000387T) °



23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

U]

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings,
and obligation under finance lease, if any), less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity.

During 2012, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2011 was to maintain the adjusted
As of 31
December 2012, the Group does not have any debts

net debt-to-capital ratio below 20%.

from banks. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholder, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

23 HAR - il BB R (4

()

YA AL
FEBEBEANBTEBR IR
PEAEEAFELLRN - M
FRRERKTRERERS
TEfB A KB @I G B R AREG &
B THARRERE®RE AR
b 7 2 AE R & R R o

AEBERGRERHEARBE
ﬁ@ﬁ&ﬂﬁ’uﬁﬁm%%*
AR KM B = AR [ ¥R 2 R

ﬁ%ﬁ$#ﬁ%%%ﬂ?&%h
Z RS T 3 R E R
ME(CHEARRBIELFE -

AEEREHBEEFEEER
LR EEERELERERE - 5L

HmE KHBEHFEIE
EREKRE(BEMEERR
ERARBEHRERTEE (0
) BREIREFEY -

KRB EARBIEM B ERARK

P
o

MR2012%F - REBEFHA2011 46
BISEMS  BCRARERFHEEE
AN LE R MR 20% © 72012
F12A318 - AEEWELRTT
WER - REFNAEZLLEX
REBE S EHIRM TREOKRE
SREELAR - BITHRN - W\
REREER - EEFEBRE
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, interest rate, liquidity and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(2)

CREDIT RISK

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30-90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are past due are
usually requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the

Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

24 AR B AT P A i

AEBEFMEGNEE MNE . RPE
EREERRIDERNEEREEEB
RRESE -

REBAZ N ER LKA EERERE
98 [ B BT R RO B 7% LB TR ORI AB
PIEFINT -

(a) fREmBE
AEENEERREIEREES
REMEKE - EEEEE
EHR  UREEERSREER

% -

HRESREMEWFIAENS - &
SEURMBEERR—EHREER
R P ETTERERFMG- &
HEBREBEEFPBEINHERE
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BEPHMER REMEEEEBER
%o BRESFEBHLKRER
Hi#E302=90 F W EIH] - BRIAEH]
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(2)

(b)

CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore certain
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 22%
(2011: 16%) of the total trade receivables were due
from the Group's five largest customers.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which

would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables are set out in note 17.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group did not have any loans outstanding at the
end of the reporting date. Deposits placed with banks
earn interest at a rate of 0.01% to 3.08% (2011: 0.01%
to 3.30%) per annum. The Group does not consider
that it has a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

24 Sih LB AP A i (4

(2)

(b)

£ri £ R BEE (%)

AEEMEENEERREE
XERPHNERSRMTE
MIEFPLENITEXER - B
I AEBFEENE T EER
pEEEPIBEREEREMHEEG
B RERE PR - RARE
HRAEIRI - JEUNE SRR KRR E
22%(20114F : 16%) R EAEE
MEREP °

AEETgR‘EEMSEARE
EEREERBRAFER o

AEBREE S K H b R IE
EENEERBROE—FTEE
TEAME17 ©

4 B

MARE AR - NEE Y &
ERIREBER - RITFRR
B4 £0.01% £3.08%H F] B
(2011 : 0.01% £3.30%) > A%
] 37 S 3R EL T BR B K H) A R &

B -




176

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(©

LIQuIpITY RISK

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investments of cash surpluses and
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date

the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

24 Sih LB AP A i (4

(©)

L 1 < L B

AEEANRERNZECXKEAADTA
BERLEE  BRGASBMIE
IR E MBS EFUAEN AR
MBAEFR(EEERBEET
BABEREKTFAAESER
BEESHE)  AEBEEE
REPERERBESTFER - N
FERE MR RAR S RH MR
AEENGERS  LRIES
BEBRTRARNCARESH
E-AENEREHZAHES

EEh .
BEE=S

TRIRNREBARRAEK B AEE
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(¢) LiQuipITY RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group

Contractual

undiscounted

24 Sih LB AP A i (4

(c) TR 4 ML BE (1)
EH

2012 2011

Contractual
undiscounted

cash outflow cash outflow
Within 1 Within
year or on year or on
demand Carrying demand Carrying
BHAME  amountat AHARHE  amountat
HeHE4% 31December BEHE% 31 December
15h% W12A31H TR M12A31H
RERE ZEEE RELE ZREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Trade and other payables Z 5 R EMERNTE 33,494 33,494 20,172 20,172
The Company PIN/NE|
2012 2011
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
Within 1 Within 1
year or on year or on
demand Carrying demand Carrying
BHAHE  amountat AHARHE  amountat
HeRE4% 31December BEHE% 31 December
15h% W12A31H TR M12A31H
RERE ZEEE RERE ZREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Other payables Hib R 30E 639 639 625 625
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(©

(@)

(e)

LiQuipITY RISK (CONTINUED)

The short-term liquidity risk inherent in this contractual
maturity date has been addressed after the end of the
reporting period by utilising the cash generated from

operating activities.

CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and bank deposits and which give rise to
receivables and cash balances that are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD") under KEE Zippers.

As HKD are pegged to USD, the Group considers the
risk of movements in exchange rates between USD
and HKD to be insignificant.

FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

24 Sih LB AP A i (4

(©)

(d)

(e)

L 1 < LB ()
REZAEVNIHABEEENESHRDY
MR BB B WS HERRAE
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25 COMMITMENTS 25 FR¥E

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (a) 2012 %20114F12A31H -
2012 and 2011 not provided for in the financial R ME AL BENHER
statements were as follows: AEWNT

The Group
AEE
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Contracted for BET4 74,043 11,615

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the total future (b) MEREHALRE - BIFET OB
minimum leases payments under non-cancellable KEHSRMNNRRFERESE
operating leases are payable as follows: BT -

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Within 1 year 1ER 5,129 4,592
After 1 year but within 5 years 152 {B54F R 8,852 568

13,981 5,160




{S’ Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
I therwise indicated)
BB SRR MTRE (BRI - FA SR H)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 26 WABHEG RS

TRANSACTIONS

During the vyear, the directors are of the view that related FAN EFRE ASENBEESR

parties of the Group include the following individuals/ FEATAL AR :

companies:

Name of related party  Relationship with the Group BELER HALEENRRER

Xu Xipeng and Xu Xinan  Ultimate controlling parties and FFEANE RFTH M  EERERAREE

key management personnel EEAE

Nicco Worldwide Inc. Immediate holding company Nicco Worldwide HEZEIE A A

("Nicco") Inc. ('Nicco )

(a) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (a) FEFHA B
Remuneration for key management personnel of the FTEEREABEHI(REMNE7
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s BEINTFTAEEESHHEK
directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the MiFsmiERe TR=HFMET)
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as N
follows:

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Short-term employee benefits HIE B EA 2,905 3,043
Contributions to defined AR E R RGRIRET EIHR
contribution retirement plans 26 16
Equity compensation benefits Tz ERA 156 157
3,087 3,216
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note FEMasEst Al B TR | (H5E5(0) o

5(b)).
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26

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(©

RECURRING TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER RELATED PARTIES

26 HOKBHAETEE 5 ()

(b) SRl B 55 W B 2R 5

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Rentals paid to B TEG S E
- Ultimate controlling parties — ERIRIER T 3,836 3,761

APPLICABILITY OF THE LISTING RULES RELATING TO
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions in respect of rentals
paid to ultimate controlling parties above constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided in the section of continuing
connected transactions in the Reports of the directors.

(c) T Lol S5 B0 A el 5 B
e SRR 2SR
BEARS EWHRAE M
TAABFRE  BRBEZ S
FREEERS - RIFELETHRAE
MAEMBREER  RNEZEY
ERHERBER S HEE -




{h Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
B HE N
26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 26 WKBET RS (4)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) A SUBSIDIARY (d)  HEWC, CREAE) — I R OB 2 ) sk o5
The Company
NN
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fx T
— Amount due from KEE Zippers — fEURF S H EFIA 17,403 143,174
— Loan to KEE Zippers —BEXTHRSNE 128,603 -
The above amount due from KEE Zippers is unsecured, LN HE SN ERE T ERR -
interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment. BREBRTEFRBH - ERTHIHN
Loan to KEE Zippers, which bears an interest rate of W BEFNESR  ERIVEKER
5% per annum, is unsecured and repayable on 31 JAFR2013F 12 A31 BES » 5L Ll
December 2013. No provisions for bad or doubtful TE N0 R VF R IERREE -
debts have been made in respect of the above
amounts.
27 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE 27 HERRBAEPERTT
CONTROLLING PARTIES
At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the immediate EERE HE2012F12A31BHA
controlling party of the Group to be Nicco, while the ultimate EBEAEERT ANicco » MALER
controlling parties of the Group to be Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. BEERT ATBBEERTHEL
Xu Xinan. Nicco is incorporated in BVI. This entity does not 4 o NiccoE RBRBRZAS MK
produce financial statements available for public use. oo ZARTEREMBRE T AR

B/ -
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group's financial condition and results of operations
are sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and
estimates that underlie the preparation of the financial
statements. The Group bases the assumptions and
estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that the Group believes to be reasonable
and which form the basis for making judgements about
matters that are not readily apparent from other sources.
On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates.
Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts,

circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those
policies and the sensitivity of reported results to changes
in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the financial statements. The significant
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The Group
believes the following critical accounting policies involve
the most significant judgements and estimates used in the

preparation of the financial statements.

28

B BOA i

REBEOF BN R EREHRE
BV BRERABNE 1L R
REEEAFZE AEBAREER
RAEEMNBELRMEMTRKRRKE
REBBRERMGFTOER  M&KFL
B S R ARG 4 39 R BE 1 Eo Al SRR FETE
MEEFELABRNEE  ERESRE
BHHERBTFELTGE  ARERIS
N REMGIRRNEE - HEREESE
AIREA RN EfhE o

EEREVBREE  FEZEEHEE
BREZSTHREMNEE  HEMAZ
EHRELZENH M H A AR
AE - UREZHREEHMRAREBRR
HENBKRES L2 HEED
RHFET - ARERRE U TERES
BEBEERUEMBBREAEBH
R E B HIE R fhE o
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) IMPAIRMENT

@

Non-financial long-term assets

If circumstances indicate that the net book
value of property, plant and equipment and
lease prepayments may not be recoverable,
these assets may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of
assets. The carrying amounts of these assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for the Group's assets are not
readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of sales
volume, selling price, material costs and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including sales volume, expected
changes to selling prices and operating costs,

and discount rate.

(2)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(2)

(b)

IMPAIRMENT (CONTINUED)

(i)  Receivables
The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability
of the debtors to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing of
the trade and other receivables balance, credit-
worthiness of the debtors and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs

would be higher than estimated.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual value, if
any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account upgrading and improvement work
performed for anticipated technological changes,
and legal or similar limits on the use of assets. The
depreciation and amortisation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes

from previous estimates.

28 HZEEruH At ORI B ()

(2)

(b)

WA (%)

(i) JENC I
NEBBEB A EEED
TR EEHRER
HET R ERE - A% E N
B 5 K H fth FE U R IE 4
IR - BBEANEER
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HETRER - HEHAD
AR R T - B
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ERBRIEEBITETOIRK
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(©

(@)

INVENTORIES

The Group determines the write-down for
obsolescence of inventories. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience in selling goods of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of change in
market condition.

INCOME TAXES

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which they can
be utilised, management’'s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management's assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FIESENETTE)
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 OAMMRKE20124E1231

NEW STANDARDS AND H k45 BE W R A B AT~
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT e W] B BRI B Y
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the RSV BHRETNERR  B5eE
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five new MASEAMEEELIT R ABERNE
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 Al - ZZEB5] RERFENREZR
December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these 2012612 A3 BIEFEMARES - it
financial statements. EUBBRTBRAZEE] 28
& iU
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUT BEAS 2 &BAIR I
SETEIEEXN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1 July 2012

R GETERE 15RH0ER]

HKFRS 10
BV MEERIE 105

HKFRS 11
BAEMBREEUNE 115

HKFRS 12
BAEMBGREEE 125

HKFRS 13
BEMBHREEUE 135

HKAS 27
BAGRTAERIE 275

— Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income
T TAZS AT EKAELEZZ5) 2012 7R 1R

Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
HREB K 201351 A18
Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
BERH 20131 A1 H
Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
HEMERER ZHE 201351 A18
Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
DA lEFTE 20131 A1 H
Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013

BRI (2011) 201351 A1H
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

29 OAMHMREE20124:12H31

F kA5 BE G R 2R B T ~ i

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012 (CONTINUED)

e Rk B WY RS (40)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BEAT B 2 2 BARRY
SHHIBEN

HKAS 28

FRGRTHERIE 2855

Revised HKAS 19
BRI 195% (L&85T)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

TR E N 2 FE A

Amendments to HKFRS 7

BRUBREERRE 73REFT

Amendments to HKAS 32

BB GRTERIZE 325NERT

HKFRS 9
BAMBHEERE 5

Investments in associates and

joint ventures

RBERFAREBTRITRE

Employee benefits
S0

2009-2011 Cycle
—EENFE-F——FHY

Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Disclosures-Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
@I A  HE
-BE B EERYGE EE 5

Financial instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities
@I A 23
-BIBEERYHE G

Financial Instruments
SRTHE

1 January 2013

20131 A1H

1 January 2013
20131 A1H

1 January 2013
201341 A1 H

1 January 2013

20131 HA1H

1 January 2014

2014%1 818

1 January 2015
201561 A1H



29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012 (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements except for the

following:
HKFRS 10, CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability

to use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

The application of HKFRS 10 is not expected to change any
of the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect
of its involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.
However, it may in the future result in investees being
consolidated which would not have been consolidated under

the Group's existing policies or vice versa.

29

oA R R E20124E12 A 31
H 1k A4E B W R A B2 55T - B
B R R R 2 v RE R (4

EENTE - BAA/IL  RAZSE
EET T RAIREE &7 & M S MR BT
MEBAFE -

AEE L EZEERTEEEERS
B

AT EIBRIBRSN

A B L S 1058 > 4 ORI B
B

FEMBRELENZ10RMAE AR
HAGMBHRERNT B G ERNE 27
W AT RBYMBHRRAORE - &
BB HmEERAF 1055 AE 124
B UEBEWRERRELSTHA
HRERE MEHIKNEEHERRESD
BEREHREKRERNR  2ERKERER
BRSNS A 2 8 [ 30 & b g
NNMERENZEZTORE ARG
#

AEERMRBEBMBEHRELRNE
ORI ERERBEE_FT—=F—H
—BRIL2EAMEBERMERN
ERARBENTENHRE - BEL - R
BRAEEHNERRE REAKER
BHRIEE A GRIENEIZE QA
MFNAHEE - RZTFA -
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30  NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 23(b).

190

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FIESENETTE)
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Glossary
il

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms shall have the following meanings.

"Board”
=34

"CG Code”

[feRERTH

“Company”

[AE] ]

“Controlling Shareholder(s)"”

[ AR |
"Director(s)”
[EE

“Group”
[REE

“HK$" and “HK cents”
[l & ]

“Hong Kong”
[&%]

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

[ 7B R 22T

"KEE Guangdong”

means

]

means

means

means

=1
=]

means

=1
=]

means

means

Ec

means

i

means

BXESBMEIN  ERFHRA - TIIFAE
BERNTRE :

the board of Directors
Ea

code on corporate governance practices as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules
ETRBIKIER 14 FTE B EE RAE R A

KEE Holdings Company Limited, an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman
Islands on 6 July 2010, the Shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

HSZERERAT - R2010F7 A6 HIREHESFHEAEZMAKL
RERRERAF - AROHREBBRZAER T

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, means Nicco, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan

EMRRIFE T2 BB RRAARIXEME + ENicco ~ FFHMEEER
Ak E

the director(s) of the Company
RNAFES

the Company and its subsidiaries
KRB REME AR

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong
EBEEEE BT BN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R E B RIITEH R

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBERSMBR AT

M5 (BE) REMRMHGHAERABIKEE (Guangdong) Garment
Accessories Limited), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 21 March 2005 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
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Glossary

[FHZER]

“Listing Rules”

[EmRA

“Main Board"”

[ ER]

"Nicco”

[Nicco

“OEM”
[OEM ]

“PRC" or “China”

[

“Prospectus”
[HRERE ]

“RMB”
[AR¥]

"SAP system”

[SAP %t

“Share(s)”
[

"Shareholder(s)”
[ A% R |

means

means

=]
B

means

means

=7
B

means

=1
B

means

means

=]
B

means

=1
B

M5 (BER) RERUEABR AT - B2005 A3 A 21 BEFRBEKIE
BRAF  ARAFTMEEZEEAENHELQT

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange
R PTES LR

the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
which excludes the Growth Enterprise Market and the options

market
HAESHIFEENRETNS  TEIELIERLIHETS

Nicco Worldwide Inc., a limited liability company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 3 May 2004, being 49.75% owned by
Mr. Xu Xipeng, 49.75% owned by Mr. Xu Xinan and 0.5% owned
by Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert as at the date of this report, and
a Controlling Shareholder

Nicco Worldwide Inc. * 7200445 A3 B £ =B i B & Ak
ZHRAF (BDRAHRE BHI49.75% ARFHIE L EHAE ~ 49.75%
BRI EEEEAR05% AEAME K TERS) « WAERE

original equipment manufacturer or manufacturing

R 8E (7))

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC and Taiwan

REARANE  SAREMES - TREEE - REURPIFRIITR
2 R&E

the Company's prospectus dated 31 December 2010
AARIBEAIA2010412 A31 BHBRER

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

hEIEEEB AR

an enterprise resources planning system development by SAP
AG of Germany and its affiliated companies
HEE SAP AG R A B A RRENEEERAE R4

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
ARATRAFFREMBEO0.01 BT 2 K’H

shareholder(s) of the Company

RRFPIR
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